
OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA
Notice is hereby given that the Redevelopment Authority of the City of Stoughton,

Wisconsin will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and location

given below.

Meeting of the:

Date /Time:
Location:

Members:

Redevelopment Authority of the City of Stoughton

Monday, April 16, 2018 @ 5:30 pm.

City Hall – Hall of Fame Room, 381 East Main St., Stoughton WI 53589

Scott Truehl (Chair), Roger Springman (Vice Chair), Peter Sveum, Regina Hirsch, John

Kramper, Ron Christianson and Finance Director Tammy LaBorde

1. Call to Order

2. Communications

3. Approval of RDA Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2018

4. RDA Financial Report

5. Discussion and possible action regarding By-laws with changes recommended by
the City Attorney

6. Discussion and possible action regarding Revolving Loan Fund

7. Discussion and possible action regarding TIF restructure
a. Review and discuss the TID #8 Project Plan Draft
b. Set date in May for facilitated joint meeting with COW to discuss TID restructure
c. Review Idle Sites Grant application and authorize submission

8. Riverfront Redevelopment Area
a. Vision Statement
b. Update regarding Powerhouse
c. Millfab/Carpet Warehouse demolition update
d. Update on Highway Trailer Building

i. Plan for demolition
ii. Idle Sites Grant application

9. Future agenda items

10. Adjournment

Next RDA meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, May 9, 2018 at 5:30 p.m.

NOTE: An expanded meeting may constitute a quorum of the Council.

If you are disabled and in need of assistance, please call 873-6677 prior to this meeting.





 


 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that the Redevelopment Authority of the City of Stoughton, 
Wisconsin will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and location 
given below. 


Meeting of the: 


Date /Time: 
Location: 
Members: 


Redevelopment Authority of the City of Stoughton 
Monday, April 16, 2018 @ 5:30 pm. 
City Hall – Hall of Fame Room, 381 East Main St., Stoughton WI 53589 
Scott Truehl (Chair), Roger Springman (Vice Chair), Peter Sveum, Regina Hirsch, John 
Kramper, Ron Christianson and Finance Director Tammy LaBorde 


1. Call to Order 


2. Communications 
 


3. Approval of RDA Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2018 


4. RDA Financial Report 


5. Discussion and possible action regarding By-laws with changes recommended by 
the City Attorney  


6. Discussion and possible action regarding Revolving Loan Fund 


7. Discussion and possible action regarding TIF restructure 
a. Review and discuss the TID #8 Project Plan Draft 
b. Set date in May for facilitated joint meeting with COW to discuss TID restructure 
c. Review Idle Sites Grant application and authorize submission 


8. Riverfront Redevelopment Area 
a. Vision Statement 
b. Update regarding Powerhouse 
c. Millfab/Carpet Warehouse demolition update 
d. Update on Highway Trailer Building  


i. Plan for demolition  
ii. Idle Sites Grant application 


9. Future agenda items 


10. Adjournment 
 


Next RDA meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, May 9, 2018 at 5:30 p.m.  


NOTE: An expanded meeting may constitute a quorum of the Council. 


If you are disabled and in need of assistance, please call 873-6677 prior to this meeting. 








City of Stoughton, Dane County 
2018 Notice of Changed Assessment 


THIS IS NOT A TAX BILL 
	


10AN 9 


Under state law (Sec. 70.365, Wis. Stats.), your property assessment for the current year is listed below. 


Parcel information 


Parcel #:051108143081 


Address:425 E SOUTH ST 


Legal Description: 
ORIGINAL PLAT BLOCK 35 PRT LOTS 7, 8 & 9 
COM NW COR E1/2 LOT 9TH S 9 0.6 FT 541DEGE 
49.7 FT N49DEGE 137.2 FT N 38 FT TO N LN LOT 
7 W 136.6 FT TO POB EXC R2427/10 


Property owner 


Redevelopment Authority of the City of Stoughton 


381 E Main St 


STOUGHTON, WI 53589 


General information Contact information 


Open Book March 28, 2018 12pm-7pm, March 29, 2018 gam-3preAssessor ,AcfcfreGAppraisal,LLCt 
Board of Review May 22, 2018 10am-12pm 


Meeting Location in the Ed Overland room in City Hall 


800-770-3927 
question@accurateassessor.com  


Municipal Clerk Holly Licht 
(608) 873-6692 


Assessment change 


General Property PFC / MFL 
Year Land Improvement Total Bldgs. on Leased Land 


2017 $ 43,900 $130,400 $174,300 
2018 $ 0 $0 $0 
Total assessment change $-174,300 


Reason for change(s) 
9 Property formerly assessed now exempt I I 


Note: If an Agricultural Land Conversion Charge Form PR-298 is enclosed, you must pay a conversion charge under state law (sec. 74.485, Wis. Stats.). 


Assessment information 
Wisconsin law requires that all taxable property (except agricultural, agricultural forest and undeveloped) is assessed at full market 
value as of January 1 each year. Assessments at a percentage of full market value are acceptable when applied uniformly. To 
determine if your assessment is fair, you must analyze it in relation to full market value. This is done by dividing your assessment 
by the general level of assessment for your municipality. 


To appeal youi assessment 


First, discuss with your local assessor — minor errors and misunderstandings can often be corrected with the assessor 
instead of making a formal appeal. 


To file a formal appeal — give notice of your intent to appeal by contacting the Board of Review (BOR) clerk at least 48 hours 
before the BOR begins. Complete and file your appeal form with the BOR clerk no later than the first two hours of the BOR's first 
meeting. Make sure you file a completed form or the BOR may not review your appeal. 


To appeal your assessment in Madison or Milwaukee — you must file your appeal with that city's Board of Assessors. For 
more information, visit the appropriate website. 
• Madison: cityofmadison.com/assessor/assessmentappeals.cfm  
• Milwaukee: city.milwaukee.gov/AssessmentAppeals796.htm  


For more information on the appeal process: 
• Contact your municipal clerk listed above 
• Review the "Property Assessment Appeal Guide for Wisconsin Real Property Owners" 


» Visit revenue.wi.gov  and search keyword "Assessment Appeal" 
» Contact the Department of Revenue, Office of Technical and Assessment Services, Box 8971, Madison WI 53708-8971 to 


request a copy of the guide 
PR-301 (0 1 -18) ACR 







AACCURATE 
DELIVERING MUNICIPAL ASSESSMENTS  


Phone: 1-800-770-3927 
Fax: (920) 749-8099 
Email : question@accurateassessoncom 


March 8, 2018 


Dear City of Stoughton Property Owner: 


The full value maintenance work of all taxable real and personal property in the City of 
Stoughton has been completed. The purpose of the full value maintenance is to insure that all 
properties are assessed on a fair and equitable basis. Our goal is to bring your assessment to 
100% of market value as required by state law. 


If you have any questions concerning your valuation, there will be an Open Book session held 
by Accurate Appraisal LLC, in the Ed Overland room in City Hall, where you can meet 
individually with one of the appraisers. The Open Book sessions will be held on Wednesday, 
March 28th 12:00 p.m. to 3:30 p.m. and 4:30 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. also on Thursday, March 
29th 9:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. and 1:00 p.m. to 3:00 p.m. 


Online scheduling is available. . If you wish to meet with one of the appraisers, please log 
on to www.accurateassessor.com  and click the online APPOINTMENTS link on top of the 
screen, then choose your location (Stoughton), next choose your service (Open Book). After 
you select your schedule/date, click the date on the calendar to select your appointment time 
and then enter your personal information. If you do not have Internet access, please call 
Accurate Appraisal at 1-800-770-3927 to schedule an appointment. If you cannot make the 
arranged appointment times and you wish to discuss your assessment with us, you can call our 
office or e-mail us at question@accurateassessor.com. For additional assessment information 
please visit our Website; www.accurateassessor.com. If you are no longer the owner of the 
property described on the enclosed property assessment notice, please return it to Accurate 
Appraisal LLC, PO Box 415, Menasha, WI 54952. Roll books will be available for viewing 
at City Hall, 381 E. Main St., beginning March 30th. Assessment information can also be 
found at our website: www.accurateassessor.com. 


If, after the Open Book session, you wish to object to the assessment, contact the City Clerk, 
Holly Licht at (608) 873-6692 to file a "Form of Objection" and to schedule an appointment 
before the local Board of Review. You will need to file a written or oral intent to object with 
the Municipal Clerk at least 48 hours prior to the Board of Review. The Board of Review 
will be meeting in the Council Chambers, 2nd  floor of the Public Safety Building, 321 S. 
Fourth St., on Tuesday, May 22'1' 2018 from 10:00 AM to 12:00 PM. Appearances at the 
Board of Review are by prior appointment only. The Board of Review functions like a court 
in that it is required to evaluate evidence based on facts. You must provide factual  
information showing your property is incorrectly assessed. 


Keep in mind that if you have questions and fail to attend Open Book or Board of 
Review, your assessment cannot be changed later. Once Board of Review is complete, 
the assessments are certified and cannot be changed when tax bills come out. 


Thank you, 
ACCURATE APPRAISAL, LLC. 








Property owner 


Redevelopment Authority of the City of Stoughton 


381 E Main St 


STOUGHTON, WI 53589 


City of Stoughton, Dane County 
2018 Notice of Changed Assessment 


THIS IS NOT A TAX BILL 


Under state law (Sec. 70.365, Wis. Stets.), your property assessment for the current year is listed below. 


Parcel information 


Parcel #:051108143116 


Address:426 E SOUTH ST 


Legal Description: 
STOUGHTON ORIG PLAT BLOCK 35 LOTS 
7 & 8 EXC R17772/46 & EXC R12019/8-11 & 
EXC R211/240 & EXC R32032110 


General information 


Open Book March 28, 2018 12pm-7pm, March 29, 2018 


Board of Review May 22, 2018 10am-12pm 


Meeting Location in the Ed Overland room in City Hall 


Contact information 


9am-3prn4sses50r AjecficupraeteGAropoptraisal, LLC 


800-770-3927 
question@accurateassessor.com  


Municipal Clerk Holly Licht 
(608) 873-6692 


Assessment change 


General Property PFC I MFL 


Year Land Improvement Total Bldgs. on Leased Land 


2017 $ 400 $0 $400 


2018 $ 0 $0 $0 
Total assessment change $-400 


Reason for change(s) 
9 Property formerly assessed now exempt I 


Note: If an Agricultural Land Conversion Charge Form PR-298 is enclosed, you must pay a conversion charge under state law (sec. 74.485, Wis. Stats.). 


Assessment information 
Wisconsin law requires that all taxable property (except agricultural, agricultural forest and undeveloped) is assessed at full market 
value as of January 1 each year. Assessments at a percentage of full market value are acceptable when applied uniformly. To 
determine if your assessment is fair, you must analyze it in relation to full market value. This is done by dividing your assessment 
by the general level of assessment for your municipality. 


To appeal your assessment 


First, discuss with your local assessor — minor errors and misunderstandings can often be corrected with the assessor 
instead of making a formal appeal. 


To file a formal appeal — give notice of your intent to appeal by contacting the Board of Review (BOR) clerk at least 48 hours 
before the BOR begins. Complete and file your appeal form with the BOR clerk no later than the first two hours of the BOR's first 
meeting. Make sure you file a completed form or the BOR may not review your appeal. 


To appeal your assessment in Madison or Milwaukee — you must file your appeal with that city's Board of Assessors. For 
more information, visit the appropriate website. 
• Madison: cityofmadison.com/assessor/assessmentappeals.cfm  
• Milwaukee: city. milwaukee.gov/AssessmentAppeals796.htm  


For more information on the appeal process: 
• Contact your municipal clerk listed above 
• Review the "Property Assessment Appeal Guide for Wisconsin Real Property Owners' 


a Visit revenue.wi.gov  and search keyword "Assessment Appeal" 
» Contact the Department of Revenue, Office of Technical and Assessment Services, Box 8971, Madison WI 53708-8971 to 


request a copy of the guide  
PR.301 (01-18) ACRT 







vi4ACCIIRATE 
DELIVERLNG MIJNI CI PAL ASSESSMENTS  


Phone: 1-800-770-3927 
Fax: (920) 749-8099 
Email : question@accurateassessor.com  


March 8, 2018 


Dear City of Stoughton Property Owner: 


The full value maintenance work of all taxable real and personal property in the City of 
Stoughton has been completed. The purpose of the full value maintenance is to insure that all 
properties are assessed on a fair and equitable basis. Our goal is to bring your assessment to 
100% of market value as required by state law. 


If you have any questions concerning your valuation, there will be an Open Book session held 
by Accurate Appraisal LLC, in the Ed Overland room in City Hall, where you can meet 
individually with one of the appraisers. The Open Book sessions will be held on Wednesday, 
March 28th 12:00 p.m. to 3:30 p.m. and 4:30 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. also on Thursday, March 
29th 9:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. and 1:00 p.m. to 3:00 p.m. 


Online scheduling is available. . If you wish to meet with one of the appraisers, please log 
on to www.accurateassessor.com  and click the online APPOINTMENTS link on top of the 
screen, then choose your location (Stoughton), next choose your service (Open Book). After 
you select your schedule/date, click the date on the calendar to select your appointment time 
and then enter your personal information. If you do not have Internet access, please call 
Accurate Appraisal at 1-800-770-3927 to schedule an appointment. If you cannot make the 
arranged appointment times and you wish to discuss your assessment with us, you can call our 
office or e-mail us at question@accurateassessor.corn. For additional assessment information 
please visit our Website; www.accurateassessor.com. If you are no longer the owner of the 
property described on the enclosed property assessment notice, please return it to Accurate 
Appraisal LLC, PO Box 415, Menasha, WI 54952. Roll books will be available for viewing 
at City Hall, 381 E. Main St., beginning March 30th. Assessment information can also be 
found at our website: www.accurateassessor.com. 


If, after the Open Book session, you wish to object to the assessment, contact the City Clerk, 
Holly Licht at (608) 873-6692 to file a "Form of Objection" and to schedule an appointment 
before the local Board of Review. You will need to file a written or oral intent to object with 
the Municipal Clerk at least 48 hours prior to the Board of Review. The Board of Review 
will be meeting in the Council Chambers, 2nd  floor of the Public Safety Building, 321 S. 
Fourth St., on Tuesday, May 22"' 2018 from 10:00 AM to 12:00 PM. Appearances at the 
Board of Review are by prior appointment only. The Board of Review functions like a court 
in that it is required to evaluate evidence based on facts. You must provide factual  
information showing your property is incorrectly assessed. 


Keep in mind that if you have questions and fail to attend Open Book or Board of 
Review, your assessment cannot be changed later. Once Board of Review is complete, 
the assessments are certified and cannot be changed when tax bills come out. 


Thank you, 
ACCURATE APPRAISAL, LLC. 








Tammy LaBorde 


From: 	 Brad Gilbert <bgilbert@ncbex.org> 


Sent: 	 Friday, March 23, 2018 10:00 AM 


To: 	 Tammy LaBorde 


Subject: 	 Riverfront Development 


Tammy, 


I read about the status of the RDA in The Hub this morning, so I went to the RDA website and reviewed the three 


Riverfront Development Proposals available in pdf format — noting the Tanesay proposal which appears to be the one 


which was accepted at some point (but may have fell through?). To the extent that you are collecting and sharing 


comments, I'd like to say that I found each of the proposals truly horrific. Really terrible. I'm a lifelong Stoughton 


resident and am really disappointed with what I saw. 


I'll limit my comments to two main points: 


First — the proposals themselves are awful. Pages upon pages of information regarding prior work that has nothing to do 


with the actual location in question. These proposals focus more on selling the community on the presenters versus 


selling the community on the idea. It reminds me of that old Burger King commercial —where's the beef? 


Second — Is our goal really to turn the riverfront into a high-density housing development? Really? We are going to take 


potentially the best real estate in town... right along the river... and stack a bunch of apartment buildings on top of 


it? That's the best we can do? In 50 years we'll be back to where we started — a dump along the river. My suggestion - 


no apartment buildings. Not one. Also, I read the comments from Becker in the January 31 minutes. Becker said that 


"most communities are looking for maximum density." Nonsense. Complete gibberish. Who thinks that our most 


pressing community issue is that Stoughton isn't dense enough? If you did a survey of residents and asked what people 


want to see on the riverfront, how many would say that "maximum density" is a top priority? It's nonsense. If people 


wanted higher density, they wouldn't be living in Stoughton... that's one of the advantages of living in a smaller 


town. Less density. 


I understand that there are those that may have the utopian idea that this will be some sort of "community" with people 


living together, sitting along the river, doing yoga in the green spaces on warm summer days, and frequenting quaint 


little shops (although the only store I see is a single proposed coffee shop). Perhaps residents will watch baseball games 


across the way while sipping overpriced coffee from their undersized 3rd  story decks. However, I propose a more 


realistic assessment - that it is nothing but a high-density housing project masquerading as revitalization. 


Brad Gilbert 
General Counsel and Chief Administrative Officer 
National Conference of Bar Examiners 
302 South Bedford Street, Madison, WI 53703-3622 
608-280-8550, ext. 3085 I Fax: 608-442-7959 I bqiibertP.ncbex.orq 


1 








Tammy LaBorde 


From: 	 Rodney J. Scheel 


Sent: 	 Tuesday, April 10, 2018 4:04 PM 


To: 	 Tammy LaBorde 


Subject: 	 RE: Question on Storm water fees 


While some of the buildings will be gone there will still a fair amount of impervious area (gravel, pavement, etc). We 


will need to evaluate it after the work is complete to see how this can be calculated. 


Rodney Scheel 
City of Stoughton 


Director of Planning & Development 
608.873.6619 


rlscheel@ci.stoughton.wi.us   


From: Tammy LaBorde 
Sent: Tuesday, April 10, 2018 4:01 PM 
To: Rodney 1 Scheel 
Subject: Question on Storm water fees 


The milfab site, carpet warehouse site and soon the highway trailer site will be flat land, or at least the majority of it will 
be. The RDA was wondering if the site is somehow evaluated related to the fee that is paid for the property's storm 


water charge. 


How would the RDA go about requesting an evaluation of the sites based on changes due to the demolition of buildings, 
or would you issue credits for the site based on information submitted to you? Can we discuss when you have time -


thanks. 


Tammy LaBorde, MPA, ICMA-CM 
City of Stoughton 
Director of Finance and Economic Development 
Direct (608) 873-6691 


This electronic transmission, including any files attached thereto, may contain confidential information that is legally privileged, confidential, and exempt 
from disclosure. The information is intended only for the use of the individual or entity named above. If the reader of this message to the intended 
recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, dissemination, copying, distribution, or the taking of any action in reliance on the contents of this 
confidential information is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please destroy it and immediately notify Tammy LaBorde 
at TLaBarde@ci stoughton.wi.us  or 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI, 53589. 


1 








REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, March 14, 2018 – 5:30 p.m.  
Fire Dept. Training Room 
 
Present:  
Scott Truehl, Roger Springman, Peter Sveum, Regina Hirsch, John Kramper, Ron 
Christianson and Finance Director Tammy LaBorde 
 
Absent and excused: 
None 
 
Others Present: 
Gary Becker and Todd Nelson 
 
Call to order:  
Truehl called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 
 
Communications: 
LaBorde passed out a flyer from the Stoughton Chamber of Commerce about a Community 
Expo they were having on April 19, 2018.  If RDA is interested in participating there is a $75.00 
fee. 
 
Approval of the February 14, 2018 RDA Meeting Minutes: 
Moved by Hirsch, second by Christianson, to approve the minutes of the February 14, 2018 
RDA meetings as presented.  Springman requested minutes be changed to reflect that the RDA 
wait until after the April elections to select a member for the Whitewater Park steering 
committee.  Motion carried unanimously with the requested change. 
 
RDA Financial Report: 
LaBorde presented the RDA financial report.  She reported the charges for 433 & 439 East 
South Street was for the Holley Moulding property for storm water charges.  Questions were 
raised if we would be getting a credit or if the charges would be reevaluated after the demolition 
takes place.  LaBorde will check with Planning Director Scheel about credits.  Moved by Sveum, 
seconded by Christianson, to adopt the financial report as presented.  Motion carried 
unanimously.   
 
Discussion and possible action regarding RDA members: 
Discussion took place on the status of various RDA members.  Kramper has resigned due to the 
fact he will be leaving Stoughton and moving to McFarland.  Duranczyk had to resign due to 
being selected to fill a council seat and Truehl will be resigning April 17th with his decision not to 
seek reelection as a council member.  Upcoming absences were discussed with Christianson 
and Becker being out of the country for several weeks.  LaBorde stated the new Mayor is 
responsible for making appointments to committees.  Appointments will take place at the 
reorganizational meeting on April 17th. 
 
 
 
 







Redevelopment Authority Meeting Minutes  
March 14, 2018 
 
 
Discussion and possible action regarding Revolving Loan Fund: 
Kramper reported that he talked with An, our loan officer at WWBIC, about possibly changing to 
a 0% interest for the loans.  An said we would have to adopt and amend our contract with 
WWBIC to make any changes to the program.  Kramper believes dropping interest rate to 0% 
would generate more interest.  Hirsch suggested bringing in downtown business owners to see 
what they would like the program to look like.  Discussion also included making a sub-
committee, simplifying the program and changing loan criteria as ways to jump start the 
program.  It was decided to keep this as an agenda item to keep it moving forward. 
 
Discussion and possible action regarding Marathon site: 
Discussion took place about correspondence that was received by Sveum from Todd 
Nelson and True North Consultants right before the start of the meeting.  Nelson is 
requesting to move the closing date to June to allow time for him to do a Phase 1 study 
to determine what clean up needs to be done on the site before construction can start.  
Sveum stated a study and all reports were provided to Nelson in August of 2017 and to 
ask for an extension once again on the closing date was unacceptable.  Discussion took 
place on requiring a clause in the closing that there be a guarantee of $800,000 
assessed value on the property by 12/31/18.   
 
Moved by Hirsch, second by Springman, to extend the closing date to 6/4/18.  
Discussion took place.  Truehl made a friendly amendment to add no later than 6/4/18.  
Motion passed unanimously with Kramper abstaining.   
 
Moved by Sveum, second by Christianson, to amend the motion to include not later 
than 6/4/18 and to include a payment in lieu of taxes of $800,000 guarantee of taxable 
valuation as of 12/31/18.   Amended motion passed unanimously, with Kramper 
abstaining.   
 
Sveum will let broker know the decisions made at the meeting to see if they would like 
to continue to move forward. 
 
Discussion and possible action regarding TIF restructure: 


a. Review TID Plan for subtraction from TID #5: 
Becker reminded committee that subtracting TID#5 will require an amendment.  
He went through the information he brought to the meeting and asked for any 
suggested changes.  Contact page will need to be updated, Map 2 needs to say 
Map 1 and Becker will review the boundary descriptions.  Reviewed list of 
parcels that will be removed and that the 2010 values will be used as to what 
amount gets subtracted out.  Becker mentioned that the list of parcels that will 
stay in are about 51% blighted which is above the 50% that is required.  
LaBorde stated the TID #5 audits will be done in a few weeks and Becker will 
use those numbers for the economic feasibility study.  Becker added the carpet 
warehouse demolition and may have to add the highway trailer building as well.  
Becker said this was a review of the first draft and no motion or action was 
needed at this time.  
 
 
 
 







Redevelopment Authority Meeting Minutes 
March 14, 2018 


 
 
 
 
Meeting paused at 7:00 p.m. for the City of Monona Riverfront 
Development presentation by Sonja Reichertz. 
 
Meeting reconvened at 7:52 p.m. with 5 members present.  Christianson 
was absent.  
 
 
 


b. Review land use and zoning maps for new TID #8: 
No discussion. 


 
c. Set Public Hearing Date: 


Discussion took place on when to have a public hearing- May or June?  It was 
discussed if there was a need to have a meeting between Council and RDA with 
Mindy Habecker as the facilitator.  June was decided to be a better month for 
the Council/RDA meeting.  


 
Riverfront Redevelopment Area: 


a. Update regarding Powerhouse: 
Truehl reported he received questions on the maintenance of the historic 
building.  LaBorde will talk with Planning Director Scheel about the broken 
windows, roof and access to the building.  We will need to get a quote for roof 
repairs and remobilization costs.  Becker stated there may be a grant to help 
cover the costs.  
 


b. Millfab/Carpet Warehouse demolition update: 
Truehl reported that Millfab is expected to be completed by the end of March 
and then the fencing will be compressed. Carpet Warehouse will start in April 
and take about a month and the demolition of the Highway Trailer buildings 
would then begin and should be down by December 1st.   
 


c. Follow up on Access to Highway Trailer Building: 
Truehl referenced the memo that was provided in the packet about gaining 
access to the Highway Trailer Building.   


 
d. Update on Highway Trailer Building: 


• Plan for demolition: 
Truehl will ask for sequencing of demolition and will share the demo plan 
when he has it.  Hirsch inquired about saving the bricks.  Truehl said we 
would have to secure the site once demolition is complete. 


 
• Idle Sites Grant application: 


Becker will start work on the application process. 
 
 







Redevelopment Authority Meeting Minutes  
March 14, 2018 
 
 
 
Discussion regarding rescheduling April meeting date: 
After discussion, Monday, April 16th at 5:30 was decided on for the April meeting date. 
 
Future agenda items – Review and Discussion: 
Historic Structures 
Revolving Loan Fund 
Riverfront project 
 
 
 
Adjourn:  
Moved by Sveum, second by Kramper, to adjourn at 8:25 p.m.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
Lisa Aide 
Deputy Treasurer 








f'Stafford Rosenbau ffi rrr
Attclneys


,l{emåer o/Genrva G r øup trnle røiorw}-
Ttr* Jxøding Glsbãl ,{lliãtue ofJm&pen&nt Fyafessiotwl Firms


To


L:\DOCS\005 649\0024 I 8\N4EMOS\3c505 06. DOCX
0316181045


City of Stoughton Redevelopment Authority


From Matthew Dregne, City Attorney


Date March 16,2018


Re Proposed Revisions to RDA By-Laws


As requested, I have reviewed the enclosed proposed revisions to the RDA By-Laws and
Rules of Procedure (2018). I have made a number of suggested revisions directly on the
enclosed draft. The number comments below correspond to numbered annotations in the
margins of the enclosed draft.


In order to more clearly communicate what I think is intended, I suggest modifying
this provision to state as follows:


If the Code of Ethics requires a member to disclose a conflict of
interest, a financial interest in legislation or a financial or other
economic interest, then, in addition to providing such disclosure or
statement as required by the Code of Ethics, the member shall also
provide such disclosure or statement to the Redevelopment Authority
Chair and to the City of Stoughton Finance Director.


The RDA has the authority to employ personnel and to appoint an executive
director. However, the RDA does not have the authority to require the City
Finance Director to serve as its executive director without approval from the City
Council. I would therefore modify this provision as indicated on the attached
draft.


Agenda control can be a sticky issue. As this provision is currently drafted, one
could argue that the Chair has ultimate control over the agenda. I think the by-
laws should recognizethatthe members of the Authority, as a group, have ultimate


p


1


2


aJ







authority to control the agenda (ust as they would have ultimate authority to
change the by-laws). I suggest using an approach to the agenda similar to the City
Council rules, as follows:


The Executive Director shall prepare the agenda with the input,
review, and approval of the Chair. Any member of the Authority may,
in writing, request the addition of an item to the agenda, and once such
a request is made, the Chair shall approve placement of the item on
the agenda for one of the next two regular Authority meetings. Any
item added to an agenda at the direction of the members of the
Authority shall not be removed from the agenda without the approval
of the members of the Authority.


Neither Sec. 66.1333 nor Chapter 2 of the Stoughton Code prescribe the manner
in which public hearings are to be conducted. I would delete this provision.


The Authority cannot, through its by-laws, give the City Attorney the power to
approve or disapprove future changes to the by-laws, but can require that the
Authority obtain and consider legal advice before approving changes. I have
added language to that effect to the attached draft.


Please let me know if you have any questions, or if I can provide any further assistance


Enclosure
cc: Mayor Donna Olson (with enclosure)


4


5


L:\DOCS\005 649\0024 1 8\t\4EMOS\3c505 06.DOCX
0316181046 2







By-Lows And Rules of Procedure (20.l B)
lndex: Proposed new longuoge (red).


I. GENERAL RUTES BY STATUTE, ORDINANCE OR RESOTUTIONS


The Redevelopment Authority of the City of Sloughton sholl be governed ond
controlled by Stotutes of the Stoie of Wisconsin, ond os the some moy hereofter be
omended; by oll ordinonces of the City of Stoughton os they relote to the Authority,
ond os such ordinonces moy hereofier be omended ond odopted; ond by the within
rules of procedure. All provisions of lhe Wisconsin Stotuies, ordinonces or resolutions of
the City of Stoughton os moy be enocted from time to time, sholl stoke precedence
over the rules of procedure.


Code of Ethics: All Redevelopment Aulhority members sholl obide byepp'ffie
{e{ov¡joJas..oJtheCityofStoughton'sCodeofEthicsffi,Sec.2-2,
Municipol Code. See ottoched.


lf conflicts of interest or disclosures of finoncicl interesi cre required by members, such
conflicts or disclosures sholl be immediotely reported to the Redevelopment Authority
Choir ond City of Stoughton Finonce Director.


2, GENERAL POWERS AND DUTIES


The Authority sholl exercise oll powers conferred ond perform oll duties imposed, by
stote ond locol ordincnce of the City of Stoughton, ond sholl perform such further ond
other duties os moy from time to time be required by the Common Council, including
frequent communicolions with lhe Common Council.


Specific oction token reloted to eminent domoin ond the issuonce of debt other thon
"conduit debt" which is not supporled in ony wCIy by the City or RDA, sholl be subject
to review ond opprovol by the Common Council.


Creotion of Ad Hoc Commitiees: The Authority sholl hove the power to creote od hoc
committees for the purpose of conducting reseorch ond/or generoting
recommendoiions for Authority considerotion. Eoch committee sholl be choired by on
RDA member ond sholl hove o specific mission or chorge.


3. OFFICERS AND THEIR DUTIES


Presiding Officers. The presiding officer of lhe Authority sholl be designoted os choir
ond sholl be elected onnuolly of the meeting of the Authority in Moy of eoch ond
every yeor. To oct in lhe obsence of the choir, the Auihority sholl elect o vice-choir to
preside ol the meeling. The presiding officer sholl preside of oll meetings of the
Authority ond sholl hove the righi to vote ond moke motions; sholl rule on motters of
procedure, subject to oppeol from such rulings by proper motion; sholl conduct the
meetings in occordonce within the rules; sholl hove such powers ond duties os moy be


Page I


&







necessory for conduct of orderly meetings; ond such olher powers ond duiies os herein
ossigned lo him/her, or os moy be ossigned to him/her.


s.rt¡cc{ )ê a¿tproútt U1, "{ç f'**oo Co" "' * l'


Executive Director See+etary. The Finance Director willþrve as executive director and shall
serve the Authority as its secretary and advisor and shall perform all duties requested by the


Authority. These duties inelr*de handling all eerrespendenee and elerieal werk ef the


Autherit'-t te mark
Ëe finblish er rnail, as the ease rnay- be; all netiees and advertisernents reqnired by lari er as


ff€efinfrThe executive director may utilize such members of the City of Stoughton staff
(clerk, finance, planning director, etc.) as may be made available by the Common Council to
accomplish his/her tasks.


The Authority moy elect to open nominotions for the office of choir or vice-choir prior
to the expirotion of either the choir's or v¡ce-choir's term. Should two (2) Auihority
members request to open nominotions, the next RDA meeting ogendo sholl include
soid request.


A motion to open nominotions for the selection of choir or vice-choir of the Authority,
prior to the expirotion of either the choir's or vice-choir's term, sholl be corried only by
offirmotive vote of two-thirds of the Authority's members. Should soid motion to open
nominotions corry, the Authority sholl immediotely selecl o choir or vice-choir from
omong the Commissioners to serve the remoinder of the respective term.


Member Allendonce Policy: Members ore expected to ottend monthly meetings ond
speciol meetings. lf unoble to ottend, Authority members should contoct the Choir or
Finonce Director of leost 48 hours in odvonce of o meeting, except in dire,
unovoidoble circumstonces which prevent notificotion. Afterthree obsences in o l2-
month period, the Choir ond City Finonce Director sholl meel wilh thot member to
discuss his/her ottendonce prcctices ond review ottendonce expectolions in writing.
After o fourth obsence in o l2-month period, lhe Choir ond City Finonce Director sholl
meet with the person to seek o mutuolly ogreeoble solution which moy include
reSignOtion - /þ âL /rt¿/uo//y a- <,æe ^ 


(â 5at.'l"I'.< u
lAo( ,'¿a¿L/ /k Chø-r no-| o¡k fL Ce,^,,^n7 Cou-"^l ¡. leFto,le {b 6r^6r, {ro,n, t|l'
4' AGENDA A'r * L'o''þ'


+ne-e¡eirpe+sen=


The Executive Director sholl prepore the ogendo with the input, review, ond opprovol
of the Choir. ,\ ,, ,ì.\ ¡ i i


Ø


Page2


Ø







5. MEETINGS


Meetings. Meetings sholl be held of o ploce ond time designoled by the Authority ot
its lost regulor meeting or, if this does noi occur, of o ploce ond time convenient for
the Authority.


Speciol meetings. Speciol meetings moy be colled by the presiding officer whenever
in his/her judgement such meeting is necessory, ond the presiding officer sholl coll
such speciol meeting whenever he/she is requested to do so by of leost three (3)


members of the Authority. Such request mCIy be mode orolly. Notice of such speciol
meetings sholl be given by onnouncement thereof of cny regulor meeting ond by
written or telephone notice os hereinofter provided, to such members not present ot
such meetings, by written notice moiled not less thon 48 hours before the time fixed for
such heoring; or by telephone notice not less thon 24 hours before ihe time fixed for
such meeting. Any business, which could be done of o regulor meeting, moy be done
of such speciol meeting.


Quorum. A quorum for oll meetings sholl consist of four (4) members ond the presiding
officer sholl be included in such o count.


Order of Business. The order of business of oll meetings, regulor ond speciol unless
voried by o suspension of rules ogreed upon by o mojority of the Authorify sholl be os
follows:


Coll to Order


Com mu nicotions


Public Comments*


Approvol of Minutes of Previous Meeting


Finonciol Report


Old Business


New Business


Future Agendo Topics


Adjournment


*Public Comments: Following stondord City of Stoughton public comment proctices,
community members moy hove up io three minutes io speok on Redevelopment
Authority-reloted topics.


Page 3







6. VOTING


Provided o quorum is present ond except os otherwise by low or these rules provide,
lhe offirmotive vote of o mojority of the members preserìt sholl be required to decide
ony motter up for considerotion.


ln the event thot ony member sholl disquolify himself/herself to vofe on ony motter,
he/she sholl nonetheless, be counted in determining whelher o quorum is present, but
his/her disquolificotion sholl not decreose the number of votes required for possoge of
ony motion, resolution or the toking of ony other oction.


be, ¡".o r.. ¡ i tr-c 4./ ^+ *--1n¿ ¡a'"q ,ar'uc k"1
Tie-vote provision: Should o motion result in o tie vote, the motion moylce'nre.tee*:-tor (J


4f¡.c.cLnsi¡larl+iî,rl if iwo-thirds or more of those present vote for reconsiderotion. lf o
second vofe is conducted ond the some tie resulls, the ocfion sholl be finol for the
current meeting ond the topic moy be\brougtffih of o future meeting.' \c-onã t[,u,Ê


7. PUBLIC HEARINGS


Authority public heorings sholl be conducted in the monner prescribed under Sec
óó.1333 Wl Stots ond Chopler 2, Stoughton Municipol Code.


the ststement is net meteriel er germsne,


Ø


8-----ÐEEISON


presiding effieer, ettested by the seeretqry' end shell thereupen be filed with the
Page4







ÄaamaÀ {J-ra Ànta af filinn af {J-ra Àa¡icinn TJ-ra ava¡r ¡*ir¡a Àira¡tnr cJ-rnll nrnmn{lv
Y flJ


thereefter msil e eepy eÊJhe deeisien te the epplieent er petitiener er his/her etterney
end te every ether interested publie effi€iel,


9. RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE CEMMON COUNCIt


reeemmendetien shell eentein e full end eemplete reeitel ef reesens therefer,


B .I4. AMENDMENT OF RULES


These rules moy be omended from time to time upon CI concurring vote of o mojority
of oll members of the Authorit Y, ßa {},^c 


^pf
¡e(


é pæty. ch.a,ny h {L* Ly-1,*t, fL* 4u /4â*, þ t /.n // ,ru¡iaar? 1a- á5o / lte s¿þG)


Robert Rules of Order where no specific stotute, low or ordinonce controls sholl govern
the generol rules of procedure of the Authority.


t\^" ft, 7 rt¿a:xc/ z /-*f¿¿ 4
onr a/ø 'æ /4" å


/k â4 z*t/..A -*./ ranr,)/\


ff ê y'/ar"*^f.
)tl


Page 5








Page 1 
 


By-Laws And Rules of Procedure V4 
Index:   New or updated language is in red and underlined.  


1.       GENERAL RULES BY STATUTE, ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTIONS 


The Redevelopment Authority of the City of Stoughton shall be governed and controlled 
by Statutes of the State of Wisconsin, and as the same may hereafter be amended; by all 
ordinances of the City of Stoughton as they relate to the Authority, and as such 
ordinances may hereafter be amended and adopted; and by the within rules of 
procedure.  All provisions of the Wisconsin Statutes, ordinances or resolutions of the City 
of Stoughton as may be enacted from time to time, shall stake precedence over the rules 
of procedure.   


Code of Ethics:  All Redevelopment Authority members shall abide by applicable 
provisions of the City of Stoughton's Code of Ethics for public officials, Sec.2-2, 
Municipal Code.    


If the Code of Ethics requires a member to disclose a conflict of interest, a financial 
interest in legislation or a financial or other economic interest, then, in addition to 
providing such disclosure or statement as required by the Code of the Ethics, the member 
shall also provide such disclosure or statement to the Redevelopment Authority Chair and 
to the City of Stoughton Finance Director.  See attached.  If conflicts of interest or 
disclosures of financial interest are required by members, such conflicts or disclosures 
shall be immediately reported to the Redevelopment Authority Chair and City of 
Stoughton Finance Director.   


2.      GENERAL POWERS AND DUTIES 


The Authority shall exercise all powers conferred and perform all duties imposed, by 
state and local ordinance of the City of Stoughton, and shall perform such further and 
other duties as may from time to time be required by the Common Council, including 
frequent communications with the Common Council.    


Specific action taken related to eminent domain and the issuance of debt other than 
“conduit debt” which is not supported in any way by the City or RDA, shall be subject to 
review and approval by the Common Council.   


Creation of Ad Hoc Committees:  The Authority shall have the power to create ad hoc 
committees for the purpose of conducting research and/or generating recommendations 
for Authority consideration.  Each committee shall be chaired by an RDA member and 
shall have a specific mission or charge.           


 


 







Page 2 
 


3.      OFFICERS AND THEIR DUTIES 


Presiding Officers.  The presiding officer of the Authority shall be designated as chair 
and shall be elected annually at the meeting of the Authority in May of each and every 
year.  To act in the absence of the chair, the Authority shall elect a vice-chair to preside 
at the meeting.  The presiding officer shall preside at all meetings of the Authority and 
shall have the right to vote and make motions; shall rule on matters of procedure, subject 
to appeal from such rulings by proper motion; shall conduct the meetings in accordance 
within the rules; shall have such powers and duties as may be necessary for conduct of 
orderly meetings; and such other powers and duties as herein assigned to him/her, or as 
may be assigned to him/her. 


Executive Director.  The Finance Director will, subject to approval by the Common 
Council, serve as executive director and shall serve the Authority as its secretary and 
advisor and shall perform all duties requested by the Authority.  The executive director 
may utilize such members of the City of Stoughton staff (clerk, finance, planning 
director, etc.) as may be made available by the Common Council to accomplish his/her 
tasks. 


The Authority may elect to open nominations for the office of chair or vice-chair prior to 
the expiration of either the chair’s or vice-chair’s term.  Should two (2) Authority 
members request to open nominations, the next RDA meeting agenda shall include said 
request. 


A motion to open nominations for the selection of chair or vice-chair of the Authority, 
prior to the expiration of either the chair’s or vice-chair’s term, shall be carried only by 
affirmative vote of two-thirds of the Authority’s members.  Should said motion to open 
nominations carry, the Authority shall immediately select a chair or vice-chair from 
among the Commissioners to serve the remainder of the respective term.  


Member Attendance Policy:  Members are expected to attend monthly meetings and 
special meetings.  If unable to attend, Authority members should contact the Chair or 
Finance Director at least 48 hours in advance of a meeting, except in dire, unavoidable 
circumstances which prevent notification.  After three absences in a 12-month period, the 
Chair and City Finance Director shall meet with that member to discuss his/her 
attendance practices and review attendance expectations in writing.  After a fourth 
absence in a 12-month period, the Chair and City Finance Director shall meet with the 
person to seek a mutually agreeable solution which may include resignation. or dismissal 
from the Authority. If a mutually agreeable solution is not reached, the Chair may ask the 
Common Council to remove the member from the Authority.  


4.      AGENDA 


The Executive Director shall prepare the agenda with the input, review, and approval of 
the Chair.  Any member of the Authority may, in writing, request the addition of an item 
to the agenda, and once such a request is made, the Chair shall approve placement of the 







Page 3 
 


item on the agenda for one of the next two regular Authority meetings.  Any item added 
to an agenda at the direction of the members of the Authority shall not be removed from 
the agenda without the approval of the members of the Authority.    


5.      MEETINGS 


Meetings.  Meetings shall be held at a place and time designated by the Authority at its 
last regular meeting or, if this does not occur, at a place and time convenient for the 
Authority.  


Special meetings.  Special meetings may be called by the presiding officer whenever in 
his/her judgement such meeting is necessary, and the presiding officer shall call such 
special meeting whenever he/she is requested to do so by at least three (3) members of 
the Authority.  Such request may be made orally.  Notice of such special meetings shall 
be given by announcement thereof at any regular meeting and by written or telephone 
notice as hereinafter provided, to such members not present at such meetings, by written 
notice mailed not less than 48 hours before the time fixed for such hearing; or by 
telephone notice not less than 24 hours before the time fixed for such meeting.  Any 
business, which could be done at a regular meeting, may be done at such special meeting. 


Quorum.  A quorum for all meetings shall consist of four (4) members and the presiding 
officer shall be included in such a count. 


Order of Business.  The order of business at all meetings, regular and special unless 
varied by a suspension of rules agreed upon by a majority of the Authority shall be as 
follows: 


Call to Order 


Communications 


Public Comments* 


Approval of Minutes of Previous Meeting 


Financial Report 


Old Business 


New Business 


Future Agenda Topics 


Adjournment 







Page 4 
 


*Public Comments:  Following standard City of Stoughton public comment practices, 
community members may have up to three minutes to speak on Redevelopment 
Authority-related topics.   


6.      VOTING 


Provided a quorum is present and except as otherwise by law or these rules provide, the 
affirmative vote of a majority of the members present shall be required to decide any 
matter up for consideration. 


In the event that any member shall disqualify himself/herself to vote on any matter, 
he/she shall nonetheless, be counted in determining whether a quorum is present, but 
his/her disqualification shall not decrease the number of votes required for passage of any 
motion, resolution or the taking of any other action. 


Tie-vote provision: Should a motion result in a tie vote, the motion may be reconsidered 
at the same meeting come back for reconsideration if two-thirds or more of those present 
vote for reconsideration.  If a second vote is conducted and the same tie results, the 
action shall be final for the current meeting and the topic may be considered brought 
forth at a future meeting.      


7.      PUBLIC HEARINGS  


Authority public hearings shall be conducted in the manner prescribed under Sec. 
66.1333 WI Stats and Chapter 2, Stoughton Municipal Code.    


710.  AMENDMENT OF RULES 


These rules may be amended from time to time upon a concurring vote of a majority of 
all members of the Authority. and approval by the City Attorney.   Before approving any 
change to these by-laws, the Authority shall request a legal review of the proposed 
changes by the City Attorney and consider any advice from the City Attorney.   


Robert Rules of Order where no specific statute, law or ordinance controls shall govern 
the general rules of procedure of the Authority.  


 








 
 


City Logo City of Stoughton, Wisconsin Tax Incremental Financing 
 


  TID #8 PROJECT PLAN 
(Draft) 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 


4/16/2018 
 
Project Plan 1st Draft 


   
 TID #8 is being created to finance redevelopment activities for the riverfront 


area of Stoughton between Fourth St. and Eighth St. This area had previously 
been in TID #5, but the parcels were subtracted in 2018 and placed in this new 
TID. 







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 1 


 


ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 
 
 
 


Stoughton 
Redevelopment 
Authority 


Stoughton Common 
Council 


Stoughton Joint 
Review Board 


Scott Truehl, Chair, Alderperson Donna Olson, Mayor Derek Spellman, Superintendent, 
Stoughton Area School District 


Roger Springman, Vice-Chair, Citizen 
Member 


Tim Swadley, Council President Charles Hicklin 
Chief Financial Officer and Controller, 
Dane County 


Peter Sveum, Citizen Member Sid Boersma, Alderperson Dr. Tim Casper 
VP Institutional Learning & Effectiveness 
Madison College 


Regina Hirsch, Alderperson Regina Hirsch, Alderperson At-Large Member 
 


John Kramper, Citizen Member Kathleen Tass Johnson, 
Alderperson 


City 
Representative  


Ron Christianson, Citizen Member Michael Engelberger, Alderperson  


 
Denise Durancyzk, Citizen Member 


 
Denise Durancyzk, Alderperson 
 
Tom Majewski, Alderperson 
 
Greg Jenson, Alderperson 
 
Lisa Reeves, Alderperson 
 
Patrick O’Connor, Alderperson 
 
Scott Truehl, Alderperson 
 
Matt Bartlett, Alderperson 


 


 
 


City  of  Stoughton Staff  TIF Consultant 


Tammy LaBorde Finance Director 


Rodney Scheel, Planning Director 


Matt Dregne, Stafford Rosenbaum 


City Attorney 


Gary Becker 
GWB Professional Services 
5813 Piping Rock Rd. 
Madison, WI 53711 
(608)444-0836 
Gary.becker.madison@gmail.com 



mailto:Gary.becker.madison@gmail.com





[City logo City of Stoughton, Wisconsin                       Tax Incremental Financing 


1 | P a g e  


 


Table of Contents 


INTRODUCTION ................................................................................................................... 1 


TID CREATION PROCESS ..................................................................................................... 5 


DISTRICT BOUNDARY AND MAP OF TID #8 ....................................................................... 6 


PARCELS INCLUDED IN TID #8 ............................................................................................ 9 
Parcels in TID #8: .....................................................................................................................................9 


STATEMENT OF KIND, NUMBER AND LOCATION OF PROPOSED PUBLIC WORKS .......... 12 


ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY STUDY ........................................................................................ 16 


DETAILED LIST OF PROJECT COSTS ................................................................................... 18 


FINANCIAL PROJECTIONS ................................................................................................ 20 


DESCRIPTION OF FINANCING METHODS AND TIMEFRAME ............................................ 22 


PROPOSED CHANGES IN ZONING ORDINANCES, MASTER PLAN, BUILDING CODES, MAP AND CITY 
ORDINANCES .................................................................................................................... 24 


LIST OF NON-PROJECT COSTS .......................................................................................... 24 


PROPOSED PLAN FOR RELOCATING ANY DISPLACED PERSONS OR BUSINESSES .......... 25 


HOW THE TID PROMOTES THE ORDERLY DEVELOPMENT OF THE MUNICIPALITY ........... 25 


MAPS OF EXISTING USES AND CONDITIONS OF PROPERTY ........................................... 26 


MAPS SHOWING PROPOSED USES AND IMPROVEMENTS IN THE DISTRICT .................... 29 


ATTORNEY’S OPINION LETTER ......................................................................................... 32 


APPENDIX ......................................................................................................................... 33 
Blight Study 2009 ............................................................................................................................... 34 
Development Projections ................................................................................................................... 35 
Community design charrette development scenario “B” prepared by Engberg Anderson:35 
Letters to overlying taxing jurisdictions .......................................................................................... 38 


Joint Review Board Meetings .............................................................................................................. 39 
Public Hearing ........................................................................................................................................ 43 


RDA Public Hearing Notice ............................................................................................................... 44 
Joint Review Board Public Hearing Notice .................................................................................... 45 
Property Owners Public Hearing Notice ........................................................................................ 46 
RDA Minutes of Public Hearing ........................................................................................................ 47 


Resolutions ............................................................................................................................................... 48 
RDA Resolution Approving Amendment .......................................................................................... 49 
City Council Resolution Approving Amendment ............................................................................ 50 
JRB Resolution Approving Amendment ........................................................................................... 51 


 







[City logo City of Stoughton, Wisconsin                       Tax Incremental Financing 


1 | P a g e  


 


 
TID #8 Project Plan 
 


INTRODUCTION 
The City of Stoughton has been actively working on redeveloping the blighted riverfront area south of Main 
Street between Fourth St. and Eighth St. for over ten years. It has been a lengthy process to acquire property as 
it becomes available, conduct site investigations, demolish buildings and address environmental contamination. 
As the City began incurring expenses, it established a blight-elimination Tax Increment District (TID) #5 in 
2010 which covered a long narrow strip of downtown Stoughton from the Yahara River on the north to the 
Yahara River on the south. This area had been established as Redevelopment Area #1 by the Redevelopment 
Authority of the City of Stoughton (RDA) in March 2008. TID #5 was created to provide a funding mechanism 
for redevelopment of this blighted area. 
 
The initial focus of targeted redevelopment had been the southern portion of the district. This is the area of TID 
#5 in greatest need of redevelopment due to the extent and concentration of blighted properties. In the months 
following approval of TID #5, an agreement was negotiated with Movin’ Out, a non-profit developer of 
workforce housing, to redevelop a former Stoughton Trailer storage site along the Yahara River. This project 
resulted in the construction of a 33-unit multi-family residential development which opened in November 2011. 
 
A key strategy for encouraging redevelopment of this area of the TID is the assembly of parcels, demolition of 
existing buildings and offering the site to a master developer. The first parcel to be acquired was the former 
Highway Trailer Building – owned by Stoughton Trailers. Closing occurred on this parcel in April 2010, 
although a deal was negotiated that allowed the City to pay for the property when it was ready to be 
redeveloped or until 2020, whichever came first. 
 
Shortly after the TID was created, 
MillFab, one of the largest 
property owners in the southern 
part of the TID and targeted for 
redevelopment, challenged their 
personal property tax assessment. 
This, combined with a declining 
operation, resulted in a $2 million 
loss of value for this single 
property. The loss in value was 
enough to wipe out the increment 
created by the Movin’ Out 
development and push TID #5 into 
a decrement position.  
 


0


500000


1000000


1500000


2000000


2500000


3000000


3500000


2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018


To
ta


l A
ss


es
se


d 
V


al
ue


Year


MillFab Change In Assessed Value 2010 - 2018







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 2 


In the fall of 2014, MillFab (Holley 
Molding) permanently ceased 
operations and went into 
receivership. The Stoughton RDA 
negotiated the acquisition of the 
property, which transaction 
eventually closed at the end of 
2016. 
 
The RDA issued a solicitation of 
proposals from developers 
interested in being the master 
developer for the riverfront 
redevelopment area. In December 
2016 three proposals were received 
– one proposal to be the master 
developer, a proposal for the 


redevelopment of two parcels on the east side of the riverfront redevelopment area and a proposal to rehabilitate 
the Highway Trailer Building. The RDA selected two of the proposals and declined the Highway Trailer 
Building renovation proposal. The RDA then passed a motion to begin planning for the demolition of the 
Highway Trailer Building. 
 
A community design charrette was planned with the selected master developer and their design team to jointly, 
with the community, prepare a conceptual master plan for the riverfront redevelopment area. The charrette, held 
in June 2017, brought together many voices from the community. A significant outcome of the charrette was the 
realization that the City Council and the RDA differed in how they perceived development occurring, 
particularly regarding the future of the Highway Trailer Building, the construction of additional workforce 
housing units in the area, the tenure of new housing constructed on the site and the role of retail in the 
redevelopment. At this point the master developer decided this was not a situation they were willing to move 
forward with and the City Council rejected the workforce housing proposal. 
 
With development plans now on hold, no developers in hand, significant issues needing to be resolved, the TID 
in an on-going decrement position and the TID clock ticking, the Stoughton City Council decided in December 
2017 to begin planning to subtract the parcels comprising the riverfront redevelopment area from TID #5 and to 
create a new TID #8 for the area being subtracted. The effect of this strategy is to remove the non-performing 
property from TID #5, leaving that TID with a positive increment balance, re-set the base value of the new TID 
to the current lower property values and re-set the TIF clock to provide sufficient time for the expected scope of 
development to occur. 
 
This document is the project plan for TID #8. It describes the types of improvements that will be allowed to be 
financed with tax incremental financing (TIF). TIF is a financing tool available to Wisconsin municipalities to 
help them accomplish community goals related to elimination of blight, conservation of neighborhoods, mixed-
use development and industrial development. The project plan not only describes the improvements expected to 
occur, but also the budget, the expected new development, the expected new tax revenue and the timeframe for 
each. The project plan is a guide. The activities described in the plan are allowed to be financed with TIF, but 
they are not required to occur. TIF is a flexible tool that can be modified from time to time in response to 
changing circumstances and opportunities. The project plan may be modified any number of times during the 
life of the TID. The boundary of the district may be amended up to four times during its life. The life of the 


($3,000,000.00)


($2,500,000.00)


($2,000,000.00)


($1,500,000.00)


($1,000,000.00)


($500,000.00)


$0.00


$500,000.00


$1,000,000.00


$1,500,000.00


2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018


Ta
x 


In
cr


em
en


ta
l V


al
ue


Year


TID #5 Tax Incremental Value


TID #5 Total Value







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 3 


district may be extended if needed to benefit cash flow. The TID may even be extended by a year at the end of 
its life so that the collected tax increment can be invested into a community-wide affordable housing stock 
improvement program. 
 


 


 







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 4 


 
11.1 acres of TID #8 is comprised of parcels owned by either the City of Stoughton or the Stoughton RDA – 
shaded in green above. 
 
 
 
 


 


 


 


 







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 5 


TID CREATION PROCESS 
 
The RDA discussed the status of and issues associated with TID #5. At its meeting on November 8, 2017 the 
RDA passed a motion requesting the City Council initiate a process to amend the TID #5 boundary and begin 
planning for the creation of TID #8. The City Council considered the request at its December 12, 2017 meeting 
and passed a resolution to initiate the TID #5 boundary amendment process and the TID #8 creation process. 
The overlying taxing jurisdictions were notified of the City’s intent on xxxxx. The RDA reviewed a draft TID 
#8 project plan at its meeting on xxxxx, 2018 and set the date for the public hearing.  The Joint Review Board 
(JRB) met for its first meeting on xxxx, 2018. A public hearing was held on xxxxx, 2018. The City Council 
considered a resolution creating TID #8 at its xxxxx, 2018 meeting. The JRB met on xxxxx, 2018 to consider 
the City Council’s resolution and approve the proposed amendment. 
 
 







[City logo City of Stoughton, Wisconsin                       Tax Incremental Financing 


6 | P a g e  


 


DISTRICT BOUNDARY AND MAP OF TID #8 
 







[City logo City of Stoughton, Wisconsin                       Tax Incremental Financing 


7 | P a g e  


 


Prior to considering the specific area to include within the TID, the Redevelopment Authority established 
criteria to act as guidelines in their work.  The boundary criteria are as follows: 
 
1. The equalized value of taxable property of the district plus the value increment of all existing districts 


does not exceed 12 percent of the total equalized value of taxable property within the City. 
2. A minimum of 50 percent of the TID must be a blighted area, in need of rehabilitation or conservation or 


suitable and zoned for industrial use. 
3. All lands within the TID are contiguous. 


 
City of Stoughton 


TID No. 8 Boundary Description 
 
Located in part of the NW ¼ of the NE ¼, part of the NE ¼ of the NE ¼, part of the SE ¼ of the NE ¼ , and 
also part of the SW ¼ of the NE ¼, of Section 8, being in T. 5 N., R. 11 E., City of Stoughton, Dane County, 
Wisconsin, described as follows: 
 
Beginning at the southwest corner of Lot 7, Block 2 of Peterson’s Addition to the City of Stoughton; northerly 
215 feet, more or less, along the east right-of-way of 8th Street to the southwest corner of Lot 9, Block 2 of 
Peterson’s Addition to the City of Stoughton; thence East 253 feet, more or less, along the southern line of Lot 
9, Block 2 of Peterson’s Addition to the southeast corner of said Lot 9 at the intersection with the southeast 
boundary line of the Peterson’s Addition; thence northeast N 55 ˚ E along the southeast boundary of Peterson’s 
Addition 22 feet more or less to the southeast corner of Lot 6, Block 2, Peterson’s Addition; thence southeast S 
64 ˚ 5’ E 66 feet more or less to the northern boundary of Lot 1, CSM 13030 CS 83/173 & 176; thence 
northeasterly N 27 ˚ 50’ 132 feet, more or less, along the north boundary of Lot 1, CSM 13030 CS 83/173 & 
176 to the northeast corner of Lot 1, CSM 13030 CS 83/173 & 176 and the westerly right-of-way of Dunkirk 
Ave.; thence continuing along the extension of the north boundary 66 feet to the easterly right-of-way of 
Dunkirk Ave. and the former C. M. St. P & P. Railroad (now owned by the WI DOT); thence northwesterly, 
along the former C. M. St. P & P. Railroad (now owned by the WI DOT) right-of-way, 528 feet, more or less, to 
the southern right-of-way of East South St.; thence westerly 27 feet, more or less, along the southern right-of-
way of East South St.; thence southwest S 27 ˚ W 80 feet, more or less, to the northern right-of-way of Dunkirk 
Ave.; thence northwesterly N 25 ˚W 130 feet, more or less to the intersection with the southerly right-of-way of 
East South St.; thence northwesterly N 44 ˚ 45’ W 27 feet, more or less, to the southeast corner of Lot 6, Block 
44 of Original Plat; thence along the easterly boundary of the Original Plat 153 feet, more or less, to the 
northeast corner of Lot 6, Block 44 of the Original Plat; thence westerly 195 feet, more or less, along the north 
lot lines of Lot 5 and Lot 4, Block 44 of the Original Plat to the easterly right-of-way of South Seventh St.; 
thence westerly 66 feet, more or less, to the westerly right-of-way of South Seventh St. and the northeast corner 
of Lot 8, Block 43 of the Original Plat; thence westerly along the north boundary line of Lot 8, Lot 7, Lot 6, and 
Lot 5, Block 43 of the Original Plat; thence 265 feet, more or less to the northwest corner of Lot 5, Block 43 of 
the Original Plat and the easterly right-of-way of South Sixth St.; thence westerly 66 feet, more or less, to the 
westerly right-of-way of South Sixth St. and the northeast corner of Lot 8, Block 42 of the Original Plat; thence 
westerly 265 feet, more or less, to the northwest corner of Lot 5, Block 42 of the Original Plat and the easterly 
right-of-way of South Fifth St.; thence westerly 66 feet, more or less, to the westerly right-of-way of South Fifth 
St. and the northeast corner of Lot 8, Block 36 of the Original Plat; thence westerly 265 feet, more or less, to the 
northwest corner of Lot 5, Block 36 of the Original Plat and the easterly right-of-way of South Fourth St.; 
thence westerly 66 feet, more or less, to the westerly right-of-way of South Fourth St. thence South, along the 
west right-of-way of Fourth Street, 557 feet, more or less, to the intersection with the northeasterly ordinary 







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 8 


high water mark of the Yahara River; thence South across the Yahara River to the southern ordinary high water 
mark and the westerly right-of-way of Fourth St.; thence East, 66 feet to the intersection with the east right-of-
way of said Fourth Street; thence Easterly, along the southerly ordinary high water mark of the Yahara River, to 
the northwest corner of the property described in Volume 746 of Deeds, Page 42 of the Dane County Register 
of Deeds; thence S 2˚05’ W, 365 feet, more or less to the southwest corner of the property described in Volume 
746 of Deeds, Page 42 of the Dane County Register of Deeds; thence S 87˚55’ E, 542.4 feet, more or less, to the 
southeast corner of the  property described in Volume 746 of Deeds, Page 42 of the Dane County Register of 
Deeds; thence N 2˚05’ E, 85 feet, more or less, to the northeast corner of the property described in Volume 746 
of Deeds, Page 42 of the Dane County Register of Deeds and the intersection with the southwesterly ordinary 
high water mark of the Yahara River,; thence Northwesterly along the said southwesterly ordinary high water 
mark of the Yahara River 425 feet, more or less to the intersection of an extension of the easterly right-of-way 
of Eighth St.;  thence northerly 158 feet, more or less, across the Yahara River to the intersection with the 
southwesterly ordinary high water mark of the Yahara River and the easterly right-of-way of Eighth St. and the 
point of beginning. 
 
 
 


All distances are per documents of record. 
 
EXCLUDING all wetlands from the above described lands. 


 


 







[City logo City of Stoughton, Wisconsin                       Tax Incremental Financing 


9 | P a g e  


 


PARCELS INCLUDED IN TID #8 


Parcels in TID #8: 


PIN PARCELNO OWNERS PROPERTYADDRESS Acres 
Land 
Value 


Improvement 
Value 


Total 
Value 


Land 
Value 
per Acre 


Improvement 
Value per 
Acre Blight 


 6  051108110455 KYLE L ERICKSON 421 S SIXTH ST 0.08 $13,900 $109,800 $123,700 $173,750 $1,372,500   


 7  051108110553 L B PROPERTY MANAGEMENT LLC 425 S SIXTH ST 0.12 $24,300 $360,400 $384,700 $195,968 $2,906,452   


 9  051108110660 DIANE C SPROUL 516 E SOUTH ST 0.20 $34,800 $115,800 $150,600 $174,000 $579,000   


 10  051108110777 RUBY M CREWS 526 E SOUTH ST 0.30 $43,400 $126,300 $169,700 $144,667 $421,000   


 11  051108110884 
LARRY R FRANKLIN & AMY L 
FRANKLIN 418 S SEVENTH ST 0.10 $17,400 $105,000 $122,400 $174,000 $1,050,000   


 8  051108111347 
STEVEN L DICKSON & JULIE F 
DICKSON 415 S SEVENTH ST 0.13 $22,700 $84,800 $107,500 $174,615 $652,308   


 15  051108111445 
JASON S BROWN & GAYLE 
WALHELM-BROWN 419 S SEVENTH ST 0.09 $15,700 $112,800 $128,500 $174,444 $1,253,333   


 25  051108111543 NICOLE E EHR 425 S SEVENTH ST 0.09 $13,900 $106,700 $120,600 $173,750 $1,333,750   


 16  051108111650 TERESA L SEAMONSON 616 E SOUTH ST 0.09 $15,700 $104,000 $119,700 $174,444 $1,155,556   


 17  051108111767 Current Owner 416 S ACADEMY ST 0.02 $600 $0 $600 $40,000 $0   


 26  051108111865 EMILY BAHR 624 E SOUTH ST 0.27 $29,600 $108,600 $138,200 $174,118 $638,824   


 35  051108129650 STEVE DICKSON & JULIANA DICKSON 417 S FOURTH ST 0.10 $17,400 $106,900 $124,300 $174,000 $1,069,000   


 42  051108129758 STEVE DICKSON & JULIANA DICKSON 425 S FOURTH ST 0.10 $19,600 $80,600 $100,200 $196,000 $806,000 Y 


 43  051108129865 RICHARD L STIRR & GAIL M STIRR 308 E SOUTH ST 0.20 $34,800 $113,800 $148,600 $174,000 $569,000   


 39  051108129972 TYSON G POOCH 316 E SOUTH ST 0.20 $34,800 $104,300 $139,100 $174,000 $521,500   


 44  051108130086 Current Owner 424 S FIFTH ST 0.07 $13,600 $21,000 $34,600 $194,286 $300,000 Y 


 40  051108130184 RANEY E REEVES III 418 S FIFTH ST 0.13 $22,700 $107,400 $130,100 $174,615 $826,154   


 73  051108139354 JEFFREY JUMP & CONNIE JUMP 415 S FIFTH ST 0.12 $20,900 $138,300 $159,200 $174,167 $1,152,500   


 86  051108139416 CARRIE M BERGMAN 421 S FIFTH ST 0.19 $33,100 $89,100 $122,200 $174,211 $468,947   


 87  051108139461 JUDITH A HUBERD 425 S FIFTH ST 0.10 $19,000 $79,800 $98,800 $195,876 $822,680 Y 


 88  051108139602 Current Owner 416 E SOUTH ST 0.09 $14,800 $50,100 $64,900 $174,118 $589,412   


 89  051108139622 Current Owner 424 S SIXTH ST 0.12 $20,000 $94,500 $114,500 $173,913 $821,739   


 79  051108139685 CATHY L DICKINSON 418 S SIXTH ST 0.20 $34,800 $113,500 $148,300 $174,000 $567,500   


 80  051108143081 ASSOCIATED BANK NA 425 E SOUTH ST 0.26 $43,900 $130,400 $174,300 $60,972 $181,111   







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 10 


PIN PARCELNO OWNERS PROPERTYADDRESS Acres 
Land 
Value 


Improvement 
Value 


Total 
Value 


Land 
Value 
per Acre 


Improvement 
Value per 
Acre Blight 


 81  051108143116 ASSOCIATED BANK NA 425 E SOUTH ST 0.03 $400 $0 $400 $13,333 $0   


 82  051108143198 
STOUGHTON REDEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 433 E SOUTH ST 0.60 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 Y 


 83  051108143287 
STOUGHTON REDEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 433 E SOUTH ST 1.99 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 Y 


 90  051108143894 
CAPITAL INVESTMENTS 415 E SOUTH 
ST LLC 415 E SOUTH ST 0.12 $19,200 $89,900 $109,100 $174,545 $817,273   


 84  051108144008 VS OF MADISON LLP 409 E SOUTH ST 0.16 $33,100 $92,200 $125,300 $174,211 $485,263   


 85  051108144115 MASON PARKS 401 E SOUTH ST 0.20 $34,800 $97,500 $132,300 $174,000 $487,500   


 94  051108144222 WILLIAM S DUTER 325 E SOUTH ST 0.20 $34,800 $50,600 $85,400 $174,000 $253,000   


 91  051108144339 
JOHN ROBERT SCOTT & ANGELA 
MARIE UECKER 317 E SOUTH ST 0.20 $34,800 $137,100 $171,900 $174,000 $685,500   


 92  051108144446 STOUGHTON, CITY OF 501 S FOURTH ST 0.40 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0   


 93  051108144624 STOUGHTON, CITY OF 515 S FOURTH ST 1.80 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0   


 96  051108161016 STOUGHTON TRAILERS INC 524 EIGHTH ST 2.02 $82,200 $469,800 $552,000 $40,614 $232,121 Y 


 97  051108161721 W RICHARD GORDON III 621 E SOUTH ST 0.10 $17,400 $93,600 $111,000 $174,000 $936,000   


 95  051108161883 Current Owner 616 EIGHTH ST 0.39 $42,400 $103,700 $146,100 $151,429 $370,357   


 98  051108162097 STOUGHTON, CITY OF 624 EIGHTH ST 0.01 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0   


 99  051108162319 JUAN OLVEDA & LISA OLVEDA 508 DUNKIRK AVE 0.10 $15,700 $88,200 $103,900 $174,444 $980,000   


 100  051108162435 TIMOTHY G FRANK 516 DUNKIRK AVE 0.29 $33,100 $126,200 $159,300 $174,211 $664,211   


 101  051108162533 JIMMY B YOST & ROSE A YOST 532 DUNKIRK AVE 0.20 $34,800 $100,800 $135,600 $174,000 $504,000   


 102  051108162640 
RICHARD H BJORDAHL & NANCEE L 
BJORDAHL 540 DUNKIRK AVE 0.20 $34,800 $102,500 $137,300 $174,000 $512,500   


 103  051108162757 
JOHN R STOKSTAD & SHEILA B 
STOKSTAD 600 DUNKIRK AVE 0.52 $52,000 $145,200 $197,200 $108,333 $302,500   


 109  051108162864 
GORDON A JOHNSON & SHERRY L 
JOHNSON 616 DUNKIRK AVE 0.20 $0 $0 $0   


Values w/ PIN 
135   


 104  051108163292 
SIGMUND A OLSON & CAROLYN M 
OLSON 609 EIGHTH ST 0.20 $34,800 $124,200 $159,000 $174,000 $621,000   


 110  051108163407 JOSEPH G BAWULSKI 601 EIGHTH ST 0.20 $34,800 $79,100 $113,900 $174,000 $395,500   


 105  051108163514 SHEIL PROPERTIES LLC 525 EIGHTH ST 0.31 $58,000 $217,400 $275,400 $195,286 $731,987   


 111  051108163621 
LARRY B HAWKINS & BRENT A 
HAWKINS 517 EIGHTH ST 0.18 $29,600 $95,700 $125,300 $174,118 $562,941   


 112  051108163747 TERRY RIGDON & SHEILA M RIGDON 500 DUNKIRK AVE 0.15 $13,100 $0 $13,100 $87,333 $0   


 106  051108163845 
TERRY J RIGDON & SHEILA M 
RIGDON 500 DUNKIRK AVE 0.15 $24,400 $150,800 $175,200 $174,286 $1,077,143   







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 11 


PIN PARCELNO OWNERS PROPERTYADDRESS Acres 
Land 
Value 


Improvement 
Value 


Total 
Value 


Land 
Value 
per Acre 


Improvement 
Value per 
Acre Blight 


 107  051108165012 
TIMOTHY D THOMAS & CAROL L 
THOMAS 509 S SEVENTH ST 0.24 $32,600 $122,300 $154,900 $148,182 $555,909   


 113  051108165138 STOUGHTON TRAILERS INC 524 EIGHTH ST 1.18 $54,100 $1,200 $55,300 $45,742 $1,015 Y 


 108  051108165227 
CITY OF STOUGHTON 
REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 501 E SOUTH ST 2.23 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 Y 


 114  051108165316 GREEN ANGEL LLC 517 S SEVENTH ST 0.12 $19,200 $78,700 $97,900 $174,545 $715,455   


 115  051108165629 
STOUGHTON REDEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 433 E SOUTH ST 0.66 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 Y 


 116  051108166646 
STOUGHTON REDEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 433 E SOUTH ST 0.26 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 Y 


 117  051108167136 
STOUGHTON REDEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 433 E SOUTH ST 1.88 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 Y 


 118  051108167672 
STOUGHTON REDEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 433 E SOUTH ST 0.89 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 Y 


 129  051108195703 PEARL G KITTLESON 617 E SOUTH ST 0.17 $26,100 $125,300 $151,400 $174,000 $835,333   


 130  051108195801 JENNIFER HARRIS 609 E SOUTH ST 0.12 $19,200 $124,100 $143,300 $174,545 $1,128,182   


 132  051108197952 
STOUGHTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS JT 
SCHOOL DIST NO 3 600 MANDT PKWY 3.08 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 Y 


 135  051108199709 
GORDON A JOHNSON & SHERRY L 
JOHNSON 616 DUNKIRK AVE 0.20 $34,800 $138,700 $173,500 $174,000 $693,500   


Source: 2017 Parcel Data, Dane County Land Information 
Office; GWB Professional Services Total 25.3 $1,411,600 $5,518,700 $6,930,300   Acres Blighted 15.1 


         % of Area 59.5% 


     







[City logo City of Stoughton, Wisconsin                       Tax Incremental Financing 


12 | P a g e  


 


STATEMENT OF KIND, NUMBER AND LOCATION OF PROPOSED PUBLIC WORKS 
 
TID #8 is a blight-elimination district. A blight study was prepared in 2009. The property found to be blighted by the 
Stoughton City Council at that time has not been substantially improved and in many cases has experienced further 
deterioration.  
 
Costs directly or indirectly related to achieving the objectives of blight elimination and redevelopment are 
considered project costs and eligible to be paid from tax increments of this district.  Public investment in the 
riverfront redevelopment area will consist of the assembly of blighted property, demolition of structures, remediation 
of environmental contamination, financial assistance to developers, improving streets, sidewalks, electric, sewer, 
water; creating a Riverwalk trail and park, establishing a whitewater park and otherwise promoting the orderly 
development of blighted and underutilized property. 
 
Listed below are major public improvement categories, which are necessary and standard improvements for 
eliminating blight and promoting redevelopment of blighted areas.  Table #2 summarizes total costs by category.  
Appendix B contains financial attachments which show the estimated timing and financing for proposed public 
works and TID expenditures.   
 
All costs listed are based on 2018 preliminary estimates. Contingency costs are included for most cost categories The 
City reserves the right to revise these cost estimates to reflect unforeseen circumstances between 2018 and the time 
of construction or implementation, such as a higher than anticipated inflation rate or financing costs that vary from 
projections due to market conditions at the time of a bond issuance.  The City should pursue grant programs to help 
share project costs included in this project plan, as appropriate.   
 
The City may fund specific project cost items shown below in greater or lesser amounts in response to opportunities 
that will help the City accomplish the purposes of TID #8.  The City will generally use overall benefit to the City and 
economic feasibility (i.e. the availability of future revenue to support additional project costs) in determining the 
actual budget for project cost items over the course of the TID’s expenditure period.  


Table #2: City of Stoughton TID #8 Planned Project Costs 


Proposed Improvements Total Cost Others’ 
Share TID Share 


A. Capital Costs $8,984,180 $3,484,179 $5,500,000 
B.  Property Assembly Costs $2,500,000 $0 $2,500,000 
C. Cash Grants $7,500,000 $0 $7,500,000 
D. Professional Services $600,000 $0 $600,000 
E.  Discretionary Payments $250,000 $0 $250,000 
G.  Administration Costs   $100,000 $0 $100,000 
H.  TIF Organizational Costs $33,500 $0 $33,500 
    Inflation  $0 $0 $0 
Subtotal $19,967,679 $3,484,179 $16,483,500 
K.  Financing Costs (less Capitalized Interest) $5,211,071 
     Capitalized Interest $691,867 
Total TID Expenditure  $22,386,437 







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 13 


 
 


A. Capital Costs 
Including, but not limited to, the actual costs of construction and improvement of public works, new 
buildings, structures, and fixtures; the demolition, alteration, remodeling, repair or reconstruction of existing 
buildings, structures and fixtures other than the demolition of listed historic properties, environmental 
remediation, the clearing of land and the acquisition of equipment to service the district. 
 
Site development activities required to make sites suitable for development including, but not limited to, 
environmental studies and remediation, stripping topsoil, grading, compacted granular fill, topsoil 
replacement, access drives, parking areas, landscaping, storm water detention areas, demolition of existing 
structures, relocating utility lines and other infrastructure, utilities, signs, fencing, and related activities.  Site 
development activities to serve the property such as installation of sanitary sewer, water, storm sewer, 
natural gas, electric, telecommunications and other utility connections. 
 
Also included as capital costs are that portion of costs related to the construction or alteration of sewerage 
treatment plants, water treatment plants or other environmental protection devices, storm or sanitary sewer 
lines, storm water management facilities, water lines, or amenities on streets or the rebuilding or expansion 
of streets the construction, alteration, rebuilding or expansion of which is necessitated by the project plan 
and is within the district.  Capital costs may also be installed outside of the district, if required to implement 
the project plan, but only the portion which directly benefits the district is an eligible cost. 
 
$5.5 million is budgeted for capital costs which are expected to be located throughout the district. Some 
capital costs such as the whitewater park and most of the internal roads and storm water facilities are 
expected to be paid by the developer or other non-TID source. Applications will be made for grant funds. It 
is unknown at this time which grants will be successful and specifically what expenditures they will cover. 
 


B. Proper ty Assembly Costs 
This may include but is not limited to fee title, easements, appraisals, environmental evaluations, consultant 
and broker fees, closing costs, surveying and mapping, the deficit caused by the lease and/or the sale of 
property at below market price to encourage or make feasible a redevelopment project.  This could also 
include the cost to relocate existing businesses or residents to allow redevelopment. 


 
$2.5 million is budgeted for property assembly costs for this TID. 
 


C. Cash Grants 
The City may provide cash grant incentives to developers and businesses to promote and stimulate new 
development and housing rehabilitation within TID #8.  The City may enter into agreements with property 
owners, businesses, developers or non-profit organizations for sharing costs to encourage the desired types 
of improvements.  In such cases, the City will execute development agreements with property owners, 
developers and/or businesses, which will identify the type and amount of assistance to be provided.  


 
The City may provide funds either directly or through the Redevelopment Authority to make capital 
available to property owners, business and developers to stimulate or enable economic and housing 







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 14 


development projects within TID #8.  Funds may be provided in the form of a cash grant, forgivable loan, 
direct loan or loan guarantee.  Such funds may be provided at terms appropriate to, and as demonstrated to 
be required by the proposed economic development and or housing project and shall be set forth in a 
development agreement.   
 
$7.5 million is budgeted for cash grants.  Examples of types of expenditures cash grants may be used toward 
include: enhanced storm water management, environmental cleanup/remediation, building demolition and 
site preparation, remediation of poor soils, infrastructure, structured parking, development of public space 
and enhanced design and landscaping.   
 


D. Professional Services 
Including, but not limited to, those costs incurred for architectural, planning, engineering, accounting, 
consulting, sales and legal advice related to implementing the project plan, negotiating with property owners 
and developers, and planning for the redevelopment of the area. 


 
$600,000 is budgeted for professional services.   


E. Discretionary Payments 
Payments made, at the discretion of the local legislative body, which are found to be necessary or 
convenient to the creation of tax incremental districts or the implementation of project plans.  This could 
include expenditures to fund RDA programs to eliminate blight, improve housing stock, remove social 
obstacles to development, provide labor force training, or neighborhood improvements to improve the 
quality of life or safety of the residents, workers, or visitors and other payments which are necessary or 
convenient to the implementation of this project plan. 


 
$250,000 is budgeted for discretionary payments expected to be dedicated to RDA funding for 
redevelopment services to the TID.  RDA funds may be used by the RDA for any of the discretionary items 
described above, or other items such as TID administration and professional services, as described 
elsewhere in this list of proposed public works.   


 


F. Administration Costs 
Administrative costs including, but not limited to, a reasonable portion of the salaries of the City 
Administrator, Building Inspector, Attorney, Finance Director, Auditor, Assessor, Public Works employees, 
City Engineer, RDA staff, consultants and others directly involved with planning and administering the 
projects and the overall District on behalf of the City or RDA. 
 
Approximately $100,000 is budgeted for TID administration costs.    


 


G. TIF Organizational Costs 
Organization costs including, but not limited to, the fees of the financial consultant, attorney, engineers, 
planners, community development consultants, surveyors, map makers, environmental consultants, 
appraisers and other contracted services related to the planning and creation of the TID.  This shall include 
the preparation of feasibility studies, project plans, engineering to determine project costs and prepare plans, 
maps, legal services, environmental investigations, grant applications, regulatory approvals and other 







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 15 


payments made which are necessary or convenient to the creation of this tax incremental district.  Also 
included as an eligible administrative cost is the $1,000 Certification Fee charged by the Wisconsin 
Department of Revenue. 
 
$33,500 is budgeted for this item. 
 


H. Financing Costs 
Including, but not limited to, all interest paid to holders of evidences of indebtedness issued to pay for 
project costs and any premium paid over the principal amount of the obligations because of the redemption 
of the obligations prior to maturity. 
 
Approximately $5.2 million is budgeted for financing costs, including capitalized interest costs.  The actual 
amount of financing costs will be determined by the timing of bond issuances and market conditions at the 
time of issuance.   


 
The projects listed above will provide necessary facilities and support to enable and encourage the development 
of TID #8.  These projects may be implemented in varying degrees in response to development needs.  Project 
costs may be expended up to one-half mile outside the TID #8 boundaries provided that the expenditures benefit 
the TID.  The cost estimates above may be adjusted for inflation at the time they are incurred.  Map #5 in 
Appendix A shows the location of public works that are planned as part of this TID.   


  







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 16 


 
 


ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY STUDY 
To evaluate the economic feasibility of the TID, it is necessary to project the amount of tax incremental revenue 
that can reasonably be generated from the district.  The ability of the municipality to finance proposed projects 
must also be determined.  TID #8 is economically feasible if the tax incremental revenue projected to be 
generated over the life of the TID is sufficient to pay all project and financing costs incurred during the TID’s 
expenditure period.  The components of such an analysis include: 


A. The expected increase in property valuation due to inflation and the impact of general economic 
conditions on the TID. 


B. The expected increase in property valuation due to new development encouraged by the TID. 
C. Any change that may take place in the full value tax rate. 
D. The expected TID revenues. 
E. The expected TID cash flow (the timing of the revenue). 


 
Following is a discussion of these components.  Financing issues are discussed in the next section. 
 
A. Inflation 


Throughout the past ten years, the annual rate of inflation in the construction industry has averaged 1.3 
percent (source: Engineering News-Record Construction Cost Index History - 
http://enr.construction.com/cost/costcci.asp).  Appreciation of land values in the proposed TID area have 
been nominal due in part to the number of blighted parcels in the area.  The property appreciation rate, for 
making projections of equalized value, will be 0.5 percent. Inflation for purposes of projecting future project 
costs is assumed to be 1.3 percent. Most of the infrastructure and site development work is expected to 
occur within five years. $132,000 has been budgeted for inflation in construction costs over the next five 
years. 


 
B. Increase in Property Value 


The proposed plan for TID #8 includes the redevelopment or 
rehabilitation of parcels within the TID (Table #1).  The formation of 
TID #8 will enable the City to make improvements in public works and 
provide developer incentives that will stimulate redevelopment in the 
area.  This new investment will create increased property valuation.  
The value of anticipated redevelopment is shown in Attachment #7 in 
Appendix B.  Redevelopment values were estimated using 
redevelopment scenarios developed in a community design charrette in 
July 2017.  


 
C. Full Value Tax Rate 
  The third variable to consider in projecting TID revenues is the full 


value tax rate (Table #3). The full value tax rate is adjusted annually 
based on property valuation and the amount of funds required by all 
taxing jurisdictions to support their adopted annual budgets.   The 
following chart summarizes the historic full value tax rate in the City 
between 2007 and 2017. 


 


Table #3: Full Value 
Effective Tax Rate 


Year Mill Rate/ 
$1,000 


Percent 
Change 


2007 0.01714  
2008 0.01718 0.23% 
2009 0.01844 7.33% 
2010 0.01976 7.16% 
2011 0.02098 6.17% 
2012 0.02294 9.34% 
2013 0.02345 2.22% 
2014 0.02247 -4.18% 
2015 0.02242 -0.22% 
2016 0.02213 -1.29% 


Source: Wisconsin Department of 
Revenue, Town, Village and City 
Taxes. 


 







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 17 


 The full value rate has dropped between 2013 and 2016.  For our purposes, the 2016 tax rate of $22.13 per 
$1,000 with a 0% change will be used in this project plan to project TID revenues.  This mill rate considers 
property tax levies from the School District, City, County, and Technical College.  The 0% change will 
provide a conservative estimate since an increase in the full value tax rate would result in an increase in tax 
increment for the District. 


   
D. TIF Revenues 


A projected construction increments of approximately $60 million (not including property appreciation) is 
expected over the life of TID #8.  The projected TIF Revenue from TID #8 will be as shown in the Tax 
Increment Proforma in Attachment #4 of Appendix B.  The tax increment will generate approximately $23 
million in tax incremental revenue over the life of the district. The total tax increment revenue is sufficient 
to pay all TID related costs of approximately $22 million for the projects and amounts shown in the Planned 
Project Costs in Attachment #1 of Appendix B. 


 
E. Cash Flow 


Another consideration regarding the adequacy of TID revenues toward paying TID project costs is the 
relative timing of revenue and expenditures, or cash flow. There are sufficient TID revenues over the life of 
the TID to pay all costs.  However, in some years there will be insufficient TID revenues to pay all costs.  
The City may structure its borrowing to match debt service payments in any given year to the revenue 
generated by the TID, or it may use cash reserves to loan general revenue funds to the TID or it may borrow 
additional funds to pay interest expense on borrowings (capitalized interest) to bridge temporary cash flow 
gaps caused by the two year lag in collecting tax revenue on new increment. The Tax Increment Cash Flow 
Worksheet shown on Attachment #5 summarizes the assumed cash flow. 


 


 


0


200,000


400,000


600,000


800,000


1,000,000


1,200,000


1,400,000


1,600,000


1,800,000


20
18


20
19


20
20


20
21


20
22


20
23


20
24


20
25


20
26


20
27


20
28


20
29


20
30


20
31


20
32


20
33


20
34


20
35


20
36


20
37


20
38


20
39


20
40


20
41


20
42


20
43


20
44


D
ol


la
rs


Year


Projected Revenue and Expenditures TID #8


Revenues Expenditures







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 18 


 


DETAILED LIST OF PROJECT COSTS 
      % Paid By Allocated 


 Type of Expenditure Amount TID Other to Project 
A Capital Cost - Infrastructure      
  Riverwalk 1,450 feet x 12' wide, paved $70,028 100% 0% $70,028  
  Pedestrian Bridge $497,025 100% 0% $497,025  
  Riverbank Restoration $224,398 100% 0% $224,398  
  Whitewater Park1 $3,285,572 25% -75% $821,393  
  ADA Fishing Pier/Facility $30,000 100% 0% $30,000  
  Lift Station $250,000 100% 0% $250,000  
  Bury Electric Power Lines, E. South St. $400,000 100% 0% $400,000  
  Internal Roads (1,300')2 $520,000 0% -100% $0  
  Storm Water Management Facilities2 $500,000 0% -100% $0  
  E. South St. Improvements $200,000 100% 0% $200,000  
  4th St. Improvements $200,000 100% 0% $200,000  
  Contingency/Unknown Infrastructure $807,156 100% 0% $807,156  


  Total Infrastructure $6,984,180  100% 0% $3,500,000  
        
B. Capital Cost - Site Development      
  Highway Trailer Demolition $900,000 100% 0% $900,000  
  Stoughton Trailer Demolition $50,000 100% 0% $50,000  
  Residential Demolition $20,000 100% 0% $20,000  
  Public Works Garage Demolition $200,000 100% 0% $200,000  


  
Public Works Environmental 
Testing/Remediation $100,000 100% 0% $100,000  


  Demolition of Carpet Warehouse $60,000 100% 0% $60,000  
  Contingency $640,000 100% 0% $640,000 


  Total Site Development $2,000,000  100% 0% $2,000,000  
            
C. Property Assembly Costs         
  Highway Trailer Site $150,000 100% 0% $150,000  
  Sale of Highway Trailer Site to Developer -$1 100% 0% ($1) 
  MillFab $750,531 100% 0% $750,531  
  Sale of MillFab Site to Developer -$1 100% 0% ($1) 
  Carpet Warehouse/Roberts Auto $150,000 100% 0% $150,000  
  Sale of Carpet Warehouse to Developer -$1 100% 0% ($1) 
  Public Works Garage $0 100% 0% $0  
  Sale of PW Garage Site to Developer -$1 100% 0% ($1) 
  Stoughton Trailer Warehouse & Lot $950,000 100% 0% $950,000  


  Sale of ST Warehouse & Lot to Developer -$1 100% 0% ($1) 


  8th St. Single-Family Property $170,000 100% 0% $170,000 


  
Sale of 8th St. Single-Family Property to 
Developer -$1 100% 0% -$1 


  Contingency $329,475 100% 0% $329,475 


  Total Property Assembly $2,500,000  100% 0% $2,500,000  
        
D. Cash Grants      
  Developer TIF Incentives (PAYGO) $7,500,000  100% 0% $7,500,000  
    $0  100% 0% $0  


  Total Cash Grants $7,500,000  100% 0% $7,500,000  







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 19 


      % Paid By Allocated 
 Type of Expenditure Amount TID Other to Project 


E. Professional Services      
  Planning - Future Costs $450,000  100% 0% $450,000  
  Attorney - Future Costs $80,000  100% 0% $80,000  
  Auditor - Future Costs $40,500  100% 0% $40,500  
  Contingency $14,500  100% 0% $14,500  


  Total Professional Services $600,000  100% 0% $600,000  
        
F. Discretionary Payments      
  RDA Funds $250,000  100% 0% $250,000  
    $0  100% 0% $0  


  Total Discretionary Payments $250,000  100% 0% $250,000  
        
G Administration Costs      
  City Staff $100,000  100% 0% $100,000  


  Total Administration Costs $100,000  100% 0% $100,000  
        
H Organizational Costs       
  Department of Revenue Submittal Fee $1,000  100% 0% $1,000  
  Professional Fees $30,000  100% 0% $30,000  
  City Staff & Publishing $2,500  100% 0% $2,500  


  Total Organization Costs $33,500  100% 0% $33,500  
        
  Inflation $132,000  100% 0% $132,000  
  Total Project Costs $20,099,679  83% 17% $16,615,500  
        
I Financing Costs      
  Interest, Fin. Fees, Less Cap. Interest    $5,295,800  
  Plus Capitalized Interest    $703,600  


  Total Financing Costs       $5,999,400  
        
TOTAL TID EXPENDITURE       $22,614,900  
     
1This is a Stoughton Parks Department project that shares the need to restore and enhance the Yahara riverbank. The TID costs 
are the estimated portion of the improvements attributed to the north bank of the Yahara. The Parks Department will be responsible 
for securing the remaining funds. 
2 The developer will be responsible for the cost of internal streets and storm water facilities.  


 


    







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 20 


FINANCIAL PROJECTIONS 
Base Value $6,930,300    


Tax Rate 0.02213 For County, City, Technical College, and School District 


Property Appreciation Rate 0.50% For Existing Construction 


Annual Change in Tax Rate 0.00%   


Construction Inflation Rate 1.30% For New Construction After 2018 


          
          
  Previous Inflation TIF Increment Total Cumulative TIF Tax   TIF  


Year Valuation Increment Construction Land Valuation Increment Rate  Revenue 
2018 $6,930,300  $0  $0  $0  $6,930,300  $0  0.022130   $0  


2019 $6,930,300  $34,652  $0  $0  $6,964,952  $34,652  0.022130  $0  


2020 $6,964,952  $34,825  $4,050,000  $202,500  $7,202,276  $271,976  0.022130  $0  


2021 $7,202,276  $36,011  $5,894,017  $294,701  $11,582,988  $4,652,688  0.022130  $767  


2022 $11,582,988  $57,915  $6,397,114  $319,856  $17,854,776  $10,924,476  0.022130  $6,019  


2023 $17,854,776  $89,274  $6,221,065  $311,053  $24,652,217  $17,721,917  0.022130  $102,964  


2024 $24,652,217  $123,261  $4,619,477  $230,974  $31,227,517  $24,297,217  0.022130  $241,759  


2025 $31,227,517  $156,138  $0  $0  $36,003,131  $29,072,831  0.022130  $392,186  


2026 $36,003,131  $180,016  $0  $0  $40,802,624  $33,872,324  0.022130  $537,697  


2027 $40,802,624  $204,013  $5,499,541  $274,977  $41,281,614  $34,351,314  0.022130  $643,382  


2028 $41,281,614  $206,408  $0  $0  $46,987,563  $40,057,263  0.022130  $749,595  


2029 $46,987,563  $234,938  $2,624,623  $131,231  $47,353,732  $40,423,432  0.022130  $760,195  


2030 $47,353,732  $236,769  $0  $0  $50,215,123  $43,284,823  0.022130  $886,467  


2031 $50,215,123  $251,076  $5,797,352  $289,868  $50,756,067  $43,825,767  0.022130  $894,571  


2032 $50,756,067  $253,780  $0  $0  $56,807,199  $49,876,899  0.022130  $957,893  


2033 $56,807,199  $284,036  $5,898,994  $294,950  $57,386,184  $50,455,884  0.022130  $969,864  


2034 $57,386,184  $286,931  $0  $0  $63,572,109  $56,641,809  0.022130  $1,103,776  


2035 $63,572,109  $317,861  $1,023,467  $51,173  $63,941,143  $57,010,843  0.022130  $1,116,589  


2036 $63,941,143  $319,706  $0  $0  $65,284,316  $58,354,016  0.022130  $1,253,483  


2037 $65,284,316  $326,422  $8,351,387  $417,569  $66,028,307  $59,098,007  0.022130  $1,261,650  


2038 $66,028,307  $330,142  $0  $0  $74,709,835  $67,779,535  0.022130  $1,291,374  


2039 $74,709,835  $373,549  $1,077,734  $53,887  $75,137,271  $68,206,971  0.022130  $1,307,839  


2040 $75,137,271  $375,686  $0  $0  $76,590,691  $69,660,391  0.022130  $1,499,961  


2041 $76,590,691  $382,953  $0  $0  $76,973,645  $70,043,345  0.022130  $1,509,420  


2042 $76,973,645  $384,868  $0  $0  $77,358,513  $70,428,213  0.022130  $1,541,584  


2043 $77,358,513  $386,793  $0  $0  $77,745,305  $70,815,005  0.022130  $1,550,059  


2044 $77,745,305  $388,727  $0  $0  $78,134,032  $71,203,732  0.022130  $1,558,576  


Total   $6,256,747  $57,454,770  $2,872,738          $22,137,670  
 
  







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 21 


    Revenues Expenses   


Balance  


    
Capital 


Interest & 
Debt 


Reserve 


          Developer Cash Annual 


  Beginning TIF Interest   Total  Debt Payments Payments Surplus 


Year Balance Revenues Income Other Revenues Service 15%   (Deficit) 


2018 0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0  $0  0  0  


2019 0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0  $30,712  (30,712) (30,712) 


2020 (30,712) 0  0  0  0  0  0  0  $30,712  (30,712) (61,423) 


2021 (61,423) 0  767  0  0  767  0  0  $30,712  (29,945) (91,368) 


2022 (91,368) 351,800  6,019  0  0  357,819  351,800  0  $30,712  (24,693) (116,060) 


2023 (116,060) 351,800  102,964  0  0  454,764  351,800  28,354  $30,712  43,899  (72,162) 


2024 (72,162) 351,800  241,759  0  0  593,559  351,800  71,681  $30,712  139,367  67,205  


2025 67,205  0  392,186  1,344  0  393,530  647,152  121,181  $30,712  (405,513) (338,309) 


2026 (338,309) 0  537,697  0  0  537,697  647,152  171,993  $30,712  (312,158) (650,467) 


2027 (650,467) 0  643,382  0  0  643,382  647,152  211,943  $30,712  (246,424) (896,891) 


2028 (896,891) 0  749,595  0  0  749,595  647,152  211,943  $30,712  (140,211) (1,037,102) 


2029 (1,037,102) 0  760,195  0  0  760,195  647,152  211,943  $30,712  (129,611) (1,166,714) 


2030 (1,166,714) 0  886,467  0  0  886,467  647,152  269,696  $30,712  (61,091) (1,227,805) 


2031 (1,227,805) 0  894,571  0  0  894,571  647,152  269,696  $30,712  (52,988) (1,280,793) 


2032 (1,280,793) 0  957,893  0  0  957,893  647,152  301,852  $30,712  (21,821) (1,302,615) 


2033 (1,302,615) 0  969,864  0  0  969,864  647,152  301,852  $30,712  (9,850) (1,312,465) 


2034 (1,312,465) 0  1,103,776  0  0  1,103,776  647,152  387,084  $30,712  38,829  (1,273,636) 


2035 (1,273,636) 0  1,116,589  0  0  1,116,589  647,152  387,084  $30,712  51,642  (1,221,994) 


2036 (1,221,994) 0  1,253,483  0  0  1,253,483  647,152  495,492  $30,712  80,128  (1,141,866) 


2037 (1,141,866) 0  1,261,650  0  0  1,261,650  647,152  495,492  $30,712  88,295  (1,053,572) 


2038 (1,053,572) 0  1,291,374  0  0  1,291,374  647,152  520,571  $30,712  92,941  (960,631) 


2039 (960,631) 0  1,307,839  0  0  1,307,839  647,152  520,571  $30,712  109,405  (851,226) 


2040 (851,226) 0  1,499,961  0  0  1,499,961  647,152  520,571  $30,712  301,528  (549,698) 


2041 (549,698) 0  1,509,420  0  0  1,509,420  647,152  520,571  $30,712  310,987  (238,711) 


2042 (238,711) 0  1,541,584  0  0  1,541,584  647,152  520,571  $30,712  343,151  104,440  


2043 104,440  0  1,550,059  2,089  0  1,552,148  647,152  520,571  $30,712  353,714  458,154  


2044 458,154  0  1,558,576  9,163  0  1,567,739  647,152  520,571  $280,712  119,306  577,460  


Total   1,055,400  22,137,670  12,596  0  23,205,666  13,998,430  7,581,276  1,048,500  577,460    
  







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 22 


DESCRIPTION OF FINANCING METHODS AND TIMEFRAME 
B. Financing Methods 


An important aspect to consider in assessing the economic feasibility of TID #8 is the ability of the City to 
finance desired projects to encourage development.  Financial resources available to the City include general 
obligation notes and bonds, revenue bonds, special assessments, and federal and state community 
development programs.  


   
General obligations of the City are limited by state law to five percent of the equalized property value.  As of 
December 31, 2017, the City’s equalized property value was $1,065,541,100. Five percent of this value yields 
approximately $53.2 million debt capacity. The City of Stoughton has an outstanding debt of $29,257,922.  
The remaining debt capacity is about $24 million.  There is approximately $17 million in anticipated project 
costs within the TID.  Not all anticipated project costs will need to be borrowed.  For example, TID 
administration costs can be paid out of City operating funds and reimbursed from the TID when funds are 
available.  Cash grants to developers may be paid on a pay-as-you-go (PAYGO) basis. Other expenses can be 
paid out of TID cash flow as projects are constructed, assessed, and begin paying property taxes. 
Approximately $9 million of new debt will be required to implement the project plan for TID #8 – well within 
the City’s debt capacity. 


    
The City’s borrowing capacity means it can finance project costs through direct debt or bond instruments, 
utilizing the general revenue capacity of the City to secure those instruments.  There are other mechanisms 
available to pay for some project costs that would not count against the City’s constitutional debt capacity.  
“Developer-Financed TIF” is one of these options, where the developer borrows funds that the City would 
have borrowed under a traditional TIF and is then reimbursed by the City as the taxes from the development 
are paid (PAYGO).  Another option is to use the Redevelopment Authority’s ability to issue bonds rather than 
the City.   


    
The City may also utilize revenue bonds repaid from fees for services charged by the City. Common examples 
of such revenue are charges for sewer and water usage.  There is no statutory limit on the amount of revenue 
bonds that can be issued; however, the City must demonstrate the ability to repay the debt from anticipated 
revenues. A factor that could limit revenues is that utility rates are regulated. 


 
Some project costs can potentially be paid through special assessments levied on properties directly benefiting 
from the improvements.  Costs of streets, curbs, gutters, and sewer and water extensions are commonly paid 
through special assessments.  The City can issue special assessment bonds, pledging revenues from the special 
assessments on individual properties to repay the debt.  Property owners are generally permitted to pay the 
special assessments in installments.  These bonds are not counted against the City's constitutional debt limit.  


 
C. Timetable 


The maximum life of the TID is twenty-seven years; a three-year extension may be requested.  The City of 
Stoughton has a maximum of twenty-two years, until 2037 to incur TIF expenses for the projects outlined in 
this plan.  The City Council and RDA are not mandated to make the improvements defined in this plan; each 
project will require case-by-case review and approval.  The decision to proceed with a project will be based 
on the economic conditions and budgetary constraints at the time a project is scheduled for consideration.  
Actual implementation of the projects may be accelerated or deferred, depending on conditions existing at the 
time.   


 







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 23 


Timing for each of the planned redevelopment projects is shown in the TID Pro Forma (Attachment #4 in 
Appendix B) and TID Cash Flow (Attachment #5 in Appendix B) worksheets. 


 
D. Financing Methods and Costs to be Incurred 


Financing for the projects shown above will be done as shown in the Financing Summary and the Debt Service 
plans for the borrowing shown in Attachments #2 and #3 in Appendix B.  The actual number, timing, and 
amounts of debt issues will be determined by the City at its convenience and as dictated by the nature of the 
projects as they are implemented.  All monetary obligations will be incurred within the twenty-two-year 
expenditure period, unless relocation requires extending beyond the given period. 
 


E. 12% Test 
Wis. Stats. §66.1105(4)(gm)4.c states that the equalized value of taxable property of the new TID plus the 
value increments of all existing districts cannot exceed 12 percent of the total equalized value of the taxable 
property within the municipality.  The charts below use values contained in the Wisconsin Department of 
Revenue’s 2017 TIF Value Limitation Report.   
 


Table 4: TID Capacity 


Equalized Value % 
Maximum TID 


Capacity*  
$1,065,541,100 x 12% $127,864,920 


* New TIDs cannot be created or properties added 
to existing TIDs if this level is exceeded. 


 
Table 5: Existing & Proposed TID Equalized 


Values 
Active & Proposed TIDs Increment 


TID #3 $20,599,100 
TID #4 $7,644,300 
TID #5 ($1,815,400) 
TID #6 ($10,000) 
TID #7 $17,426,500 


Subtotal $43,844,500 
Base Value TID #8 $6,930,300 


Grand Total $50,774,800 
TID % 4.8% 


 
 


The City is in compliance with the statutory equalized value test for TID creation.   
 
  







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 24 


 


 


PROPOSED CHANGES IN ZONING ORDINANCES, MASTER PLAN, BUILDING CODES, MAP AND CITY ORDINANCES 
 
The City’s zoning ordinance and other City ordinances are required to implement this project plan.  This project 
plan is feasible with no zoning changes. However, it is expected that a master developer will request rezoning the 
riverfront redevelopment area from the current MR-24 (high density multi-family residential) to planned 
development zoning. Individual redevelopment proposals may require changes in zoning designation consistent 
with the intent of this Plan.  Zoning is shown on Map #6 in Appendix A.  There are multiple zoning districts used 
within the TID boundary.  Redevelopment proposals will have to go through the appropriate procedure to receive 
the proper zoning for their project.  No changes are proposed in the Comprehensive (Master) Plan, Official Map, 
or Building Codes as part of this Plan.   


 


LIST OF NON-PROJECT COSTS 
 
Certain types of projects that may need to be incurred may not be eligible project costs. Such costs include: 


• The construction or expansion of municipal administrative buildings, police and fire buildings, libraries, 
community and recreational buildings and school buildings; 


• General government operating expenses unrelated to the TID development; 
• Cash grants to developers without a signed development agreement. 


The public works garage for the City of Stoughton is in the TID and is scheduled to be replaced by a new 
facility at a different location. This site is part of the riverfront redevelopment area expected to be made 
available to a master developer. No TID expenditures may be made that would benefit the new public works 
garage. 
 
Additionally, some projects may be built that benefit some property in the TID and some property outside of the 
TID. In such cases, an allocation of costs would need to be made proportionate to the relative benefit inside and 
outside the TID. Examples of such projects include: 
An interceptor sewer serving property both in and out of the TID – although the interceptor may be located 
entirely within the TID, it serves the entire city or portion of the city, therefore the cost charged to the TID 
should be the proportionate share that the TID has of the flow through the interceptor. 
Costs paid other funds – for example, special assessments levied against property owners or user fees or impact 
fees. 
 
The City of Stoughton is planning a whitewater park in the Yahara River within TID #8. This park will benefit 
the entire City. Additionally, park impact fees may be used to pay some of the costs. TID #8 cannot pay the 
entire cost of the whitewater park. However, the bank of the Yahara River bordering the redevelopment area 
needs to be restored and improved which is a direct benefit to the TID. That is also a need of the whitewater 
park. The City estimates that approximately 25% of the cost of the whitewater park directly benefits TID #8.  
 
No other non-project costs are expected to be incurred by the City in relation to the TID development. 







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 25 


PROPOSED PLAN FOR RELOCATING ANY DISPLACED PERSONS OR BUSINESSES 
 
Although relocation is currently not anticipated, it is possible that it will be necessary to implement projects 
proposed during the life of TID #8.  If relocation were to become necessary, the City or Redevelopment Authority 
would follow Wisconsin state statues covering displacement or relocation as the result of public projects.  Before 
negotiations begin for the acquisition of property or easements, all property owners will be contacted to determine 
if there will be displaced persons as defined by Wisconsin Statues and Administrative Rules.  If it appears there 
will be displaced persons, all property owners and prospective displaced persons will be provided an informational 
pamphlet prepared by the Wisconsin Department of Administration (WDOA).  If any person is to be displaced 
because of the acquisition they will be given a pamphlet on "Relocation Benefits" as prepared by the WDOA. 
The City will file a relocation plan with the WDOA and shall keep records as required in Wisconsin Statutes 
32.27.  The City will provide each owner a full narrative appraisal, a map showing the owners of all property 
affected by the proposed project and a list of neighboring landowners to whom offers are being made as required 
by law. 
 


HOW THE TID PROMOTES THE ORDERLY DEVELOPMENT OF THE MUNICIPALITY 
 
This TID promotes the orderly development of the City of Stoughton because it will eliminate blight, improve 
contaminated property and place unproductive property – all located in the heart of the City - back on the City 
tax rolls. The development of TID #8 will result in approximately 250 new housing units located within three 
blocks of the downtown retail district. This boost in available discretionary income will increase sales to 
downtown businesses and help to stabilize downtown as a retail center in the City. The development density of 
TID #8 will be higher than typical new development in the City and little new infrastructure or service capacity 
will need to be built, thereby allowing existing infrastructure to serve even more residents, thus making the 
delivery of public services more efficient. The development of TID #8 will create a residential neighborhood 
and offer housing types not generally found in the rest of the City. The increase in diversity of housing stock 
will make Stoughton an option as a place of residence for new households as well as for existing households in 
the City looking for something different. This will help to stimulate improvements in the city’s overall rental 
housing stock. 
  







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 26 


MAPS OF EXISTING USES AND CONDITIONS OF PROPERTY 
 


 







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 27 


  







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 28 


  







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 29 


MAPS SHOWING PROPOSED USES AND IMPROVEMENTS IN THE DISTRICT 
 


 







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 30 


  







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 31 


  







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 32 


ATTORNEY’S OPINION LETTER 
 
  







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 33 


APPENDIX 
  







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 34 


Blight Study 2009  
  







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 35 


Development Projections 


Community design charrette development scenario “B” prepared by Engberg Anderson:  


 







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 36 


  


  







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 37 


   







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 38 


Letters to overlying taxing jurisdictions  
Notification of initiation of TID plan amendment process 
 
 
 
  







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 39 


Joint Review Board Meetings 


JRB MEETING #1 MEETING NOTICE PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
  







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 40 


 


JRB MEETING #1 MEETING MINUTES 
 
  







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 41 


JRB MEETING #2 MEETING NOTICE PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
 
  







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 42 


JRB MEETING #2 MEETING MINUTES 
  







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 43 


Public Hearing 
 
  







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 44 


RDA Public Hearing Notice 
 
 
  







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 45 


Joint Review Board Public Hearing Notice 
The following public hearing notice was sent to the chief executive officer of each of the overlying taxing 
jurisdictions by first class mail.  







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 46 


Property Owners Public Hearing Notice 
The following public hearing notice letter was sent to all property owners within TID #4. 


  







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 47 


RDA Minutes of  Public Hearing 
  







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 48 


Resolutions 
  







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 49 


RDA Resolution Approving Amendment 


 
 
 
 
  







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 50 


City Council Resolution Approving Amendment 
  







TID #8 Project Plan 


 
Page 51 


JRB Resolution Approving Amendment 
 


 





		Introduction

		TID Creation process

		District Boundary and Map of TID #8

		Parcels Included in TID #8

		Parcels in TID #8:



		Statement of Kind, Number and Location of Proposed Public Works

		A. Capital Costs

		A.

		B. Property Assembly Costs

		C. Cash Grants

		D. Professional Services

		E. Discretionary Payments

		F. Administration Costs

		G. TIF Organizational Costs

		H. Financing Costs



		Economic Feasibility Study

		Detailed List of Project Costs

		Financial projections

		Description of Financing Methods and Timeframe

		Proposed changes in zoning ordinances, master plan, building codes, map and city ordinances

		List of Non-Project Costs

		Proposed plan for relocating any displaced persons or businesses

		How the TID Promotes the orderly development of the Municipality

		Maps of existing uses and conditions of property

		Maps showing proposed uses and improvements in the district

		Attorney’s Opinion Letter

		Appendix

		Blight Study 2009

		Development Projections

		Community design charrette development scenario “B” prepared by Engberg Anderson:

		Letters to overlying taxing jurisdictions

		Joint Review Board Meetings

		JRB Meeting #1 Meeting Notice Proof of Publication

		JRB Meeting #1 Meeting minutes

		JRB Meeting #2 Meeting notice proof of publication

		JRB Meeting #2 Meeting minutes



		Public Hearing

		RDA Public Hearing Notice

		Joint Review Board Public Hearing Notice

		Property Owners Public Hearing Notice

		RDA Minutes of Public Hearing



		Resolutions

		RDA Resolution Approving Amendment

		City Council Resolution Approving Amendment

		JRB Resolution Approving Amendment







